
       
                    
 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell 

Vice Mayor Bob Best                                     Councilwoman Jacky Bravo 

Councilman Walter Fajet, Ph. D.                                  Councilman Victor Vazquez 
 
Decorum: “Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing the City Council, shall be barred from 

further audience before the City Council by the Mayor, unless permission to continue or again address the City Council is granted by the majority vote of 

the City Council members present.  In accordance with the foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or ethnic slurs, personal attacks and 

comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited comments from the podium.” 

 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, April 12, 2021 – 7:00 p.m. 

Rebeca Sosa Theater, Recreation Center, 1401 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida  

(In-person and virtually. See pages 3-4 for additional information) 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

 

2. Invocation: Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell 

Pledge of Allegiance: Girl Scout Troop 2564 will lead the Pledge of Allegiance and Salute to 
the Flag 

   

3. Agenda / Order of Business 
 

4. Awards & Presentations:   

 
A) Presentation by Fire Chief Alan Cominsky, Miami-Dade Fire Rescue, Regarding the 

Department’s Accomplishments and Services to the City of Miami Springs  
 
B) Presentation by Chris Caudle on the Coach Caudle Cares Foundation 

 

5. Open Forum: Due to COVID-19 requirements, persons wishing to speak on items of general 
City business, may do so in person (subject to capacity restrictions) or virtually by following the 
instructions on pages 3-4. This portion of the meeting also includes any pre-screened video 
submittals.  The purpose of Open Forum is to encourage residents and members of the public to address their 
concerns and make comments on any item.  The City Council will not enter into a dialogue at this time. City staff 
will gladly address any question, issue, and/or comment after the meeting. The Mayor is the presiding officer of 
all Council meetings and shall conduct the meetings accordingly. 

 

6. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) March 22, 2021 – Regular Meeting 

 

7. Reports from Boards & Commissions: None. 

 

8. Public Hearings:   None. 

 

9. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted):   

REVISED 



 

A)  Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami Springs, 
Florida, Approving The Purchase Of Police Motorcycle Radar Equipment From Applied Concepts, Inc. 
In An Amount Not To Exceed $14,008.00; Providing For Authorization; And Providing For An Effective 
Date 

 

B)  Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami Springs, 
Florida, Approving A Pool Maintenance Services Agreement With Supreme Chemical And Pool 
Supply, Inc. In An Amount Not To Exceed Budgeted Funds; Providing For Authorization; And 
Providing For An Effective Date 
 

10. Old Business: None. 
 

11. New Business:  

 

 A) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami 
Springs, Florida, Approving A Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement With The Florida Division Of 
Emergency Management; Providing For Authorization; And Providing For An Effective Date 
 

12. Other Business:   
 
 A) Request by Mayor Mitchell to discuss new City Council future goals and strategic 
planning 
 
 B) Request by Mayor Mitchell to discuss the status of City Boards  
  

13. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney 
 

B) City Manager 
 
C) City Council 

 

14. Adjourn 



 CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE 

 
The City of Miami Springs will hold a Council meeting on: 

Monday, April 12, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. at  

Recreation Center, Rebeca Sosa Theater, 1401 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 

(Physical Meeting Location) 

 
The meeting agenda is available online at: https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/meetings 

 
Elected officials and City staff will participate from the physical meeting location.  

Members of the public may attend the meeting in person at the physical meeting location, or, alternatively, 
may watch or call in to the meeting by following these instructions: 

 

ATTEND THE MEETING IN PERSON AT THE PHYSICAL MEETING LOCATION 

The meeting will be held in person at the physical meeting location stated above.  
Due to COVID-19 and social distancing requirements, there will be limited space for members of the public 

to attend the meeting at the physical meeting location.  
Admission to the physical meeting location is on a first-come, first-serve basis.  

Doors will open 30 minutes prior to the meeting start time.  
Facial coverings are required for admission to the meeting at the physical meeting location and must be 

worn throughout the entirety of the meeting in accordance with State and County Orders.  
Social distancing requirements as set forth in State and County Orders must be adhered to.  

WATCH THE MEETING 

• Comcast/Xfinity: Channel 77 (Meeting will not be live broadcast, but will be available for later viewing) 

• YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC2at9KNnqUxZRSw1UkhdHLQ/featured 

• From your computer/mobile device: https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/meetings  

CALL IN TO THE PUBLIC MEETING  

Dial 305-805-5151 or 305-805-5152  
(Alternatively, you may also dial the phone numbers below to join the meeting: 

        1 (646) 558 8656, 1 (301) 715 8592, 1 (312) 626 6799, 1 (669) 900 9128, 1 (253) 215 8782,  

1 (346) 248 7799) then input the Meeting ID: 863-9512-4146, followed by #. 

There is no participant ID. Press # again. 

Any person requiring special accommodations to access this proceeding is asked to advise the City  
at least 2 days before the proceeding by contacting the City Clerk at cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov  

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS WILL BE ACCEPTED BY THE FOLLOWING MEANS: 

EMAILED COMMENTS: Members of the public may email their public comments to the City in advance of the 

meeting. Please email the City at cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov by 12:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting with 
the subject line “PUBLIC COMMENT” and the following information in the body of the email: Your Name, 
Address, if you are a hired Consultant or City Employee, and/or if you are engaged in Lobbying Activities and/or 
representing an organization. Please limit your comments to no more than 350 words. Public comments 
received via email may be read into the record during the public comment portion of the agenda, if any.  

IN-PERSON COMMENTS: Subject to social distancing requirements, members of the public may attend the 
meeting at the physical meeting location stated above and deliver their public comments in person during the 
public comment portion of the agenda.  

VIRTUAL COMMENTS: Public comments will also be accepted during the meeting using the virtual 

meeting platform as follows:  

By telephone: To ask to speak during the meeting, call in to the meeting using the instructions above. Please 
press *9 from your telephone and you will be called on to speak during public comments and identified by the 
last 4-digits of your telephone number.  

https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/meetings
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC2at9KNnqUxZRSw1UkhdHLQ/featured
https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/meetings
mailto:cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov
mailto:cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov


During the meeting, when your name or the last 4-digits of your telephone number is called, you will be unmuted 
and you may deliver your comments.  

Please be sure to be in a quiet area to avoid unnecessary noise. Please provide the following information before 
delivering your comments: Your Name, Address, if you are a hired Consultant or City Employee, and/or if you 
are engaged in Lobbying Activities and/or representing an organization. 

 

A time limit may be imposed for each speaker during public comment. 
Your cooperation is appreciated in observing the time limit. 

 
Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing the City 
Council, shall be barred from further audience before the City Council by the Mayor, unless permission to 
continue or again address the City Council is granted by the majority vote of the City Council members present. 
In accordance with the foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or ethnic slurs, personal attacks 
and comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited comments when addressing the Council 
during public comments. 

 

PUBLIC RECORDS 
The meeting will be recorded for later viewing and is a public record. The virtual chat, if any, will be saved and is 
a public record. Minutes of the meeting will be taken and will be made available. 

 

NOTICE PURSUANT TO §286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES 

IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE BOARD, AGENCY, OR COMMISSION 

WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL 

NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS, AND FOR SUCH PURPOSE, HE OR SHE MAY NEED TO 

ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES 

THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED. 

 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations 
to participate in this proceeding is asked to advise the City at least 2 days before the proceeding by contacting 
the City Clerk’s Office at 305-805-5006.  

 

LOBBYING ACTIVITIES 
In accordance with Section 33-01 of the City Code, adopting Section 2-11.1(s) of the Miami-Dade County Code, 
any person engaging in lobbying activities, as defined therein, must register at the City Clerk’s Office before 
addressing the City Council on the agenda items or engaging in lobbying activities. Specifically, all persons, 
firms or corporations employed or retained by a principal who seeks to encourage the passage, defeat, or 
modifications of (1) ordinance, resolution, action or decision of the City Council; (2) any action, decision, 
recommendation of any City Board or Committee; or (3) any action, decision or recommendation of City 
personnel during the time period of the entire decision-making process on such action, decision or 
recommendation which will be heard or reviewed by the City Council, or a City Board or Committee shall register 
with the City before engaging in any lobbying activities on forms prepared for this purpose and shall state under 
oath his or her name, business address, the name and business address of each person or entity which has 
employed said registrant to lobby, and the specific issue on which he or she has been employed to lobby. A 
copy of the lobbyist registration form is available from the Office of the City Clerk and online at: 
https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/cityclerk/lobbyist-registration-form-0. 

 

Have questions or need additional information? 

Write: cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov 

Call: 305-805-5006 

Mail: 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, FL 33166 
 

https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/cityclerk/lobbyist-registration-form-0
mailto:cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov


 
 1 

      
 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
Regular Meeting Minutes  

Monday, March 22, 2021 7:00 p.m. 
Rebeca Sosa Theater, 1401 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida/ 

Virtual Council Meeting using Communications Media Technology Pursuant to 
Governor’s Executive Order 20-69 

 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 7:02 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
Mayor Billy Bain 
Vice Mayor Zavier Garcia 
Councilman Bob Best  
Councilwoman Maria Mitchell 
Councilman Walter Fajet, Ph.D. 
 
City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso  
Assistant City Manager Tammy Romero (via Zoom) 
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria  
City Attorney Haydee Sera 
Recreation Director Omar Luna 
 
2. Invocation:  Led by Councilman Bob Best 
 Pledge of Allegiance: Audience led the Pledge of Allegiance and Salute to the Flag. 

 
3. Agenda / Order of Business: None at this time. 
 
4. Awards & Presentations:   
 

A) Retirement presentation by Police Chief Guzman to K-9 Officer Shadow 
accepting on his behalf is handler Officer Darryl Cates 
 
Chief Guzman presented a plaque to honor K-9 Officer Shadow’s years of service, 
the plaque was accepted by Officer Darryl Cates on Shadow’s behalf. 

 
B) Retirement presentation by Police Chief Guzman to K-9 Officer Darryl Cates 

for his years of service 
 

Chief Guzman thanked Officer Darryl Cates for his years of service and presented 
him with his Retired Police identification. 
 

C) Retirement presentation by Police Chief Guzman to Executive Assistant to the 
Police Chief Leah Cates for her years of service 



 
 2 

Chief Guzman thanked Leah Cates for her years of service and presented her with 
her Retired civilian identification. 

 
D) Introduction by Police Chief Guzman of Ari Quintana, the new Administrative 

Assistant to the Police Chief  
 

Chief Guzman introduced Ms. Quintana and stated that he is thrilled to have her on 
board and looks forward to working with her. 

 
E) Miami Springs Police Department Swearing in Ceremony for new Officer 

Lazaro D. Rodriguez  
 

Chief Guzman swore-in Officer Lazaro Rodriguez, he stated that prior to becoming 
an officer, Officer Rodriguez worked at the Recreation Center for a few years before 
going to the police academy.  Officer Rodriguez thanked the Chief, City Council and 
City staff for their support.   

 
F) Recognition by Mayor Bain, Vice Mayor Garcia, and City Council along with 

Addy Lee Garcia to Officer Jorge Capote and Officer Janice Simon for their educational 
presentation on the DARE program at ISAAC Academy in Miami Springs 

 
Mayor Bain along with ISAAC Academy student Addy Lee Garcia presented plaques 
to Officers Capote and Simon for their DARE educational program.  Ms. Garcia 
thanked them on behalf of the students of ISAAC and appreciated their program. 

 
G) Recognizing Recreation Staff members for their service during the FEMA 

COVID-19 Vaccine Event at the Community Center; Caitlin Smith, Denise Bedenbaugh, 
James Dean, Joel Watts, Danny Valdes, Marcus Martin, Anthony Fernandez, and Joe Diaz 
 
Mayor Bain presented the Recreation Staff for their assistance and coordination of 
the FEMA vaccine event.  He stated that they are appreciated and well deserving of 
the recognition.   
 
5. Open Forum:  The following members of the public addressed the City 

Council:  George Lob, 860 Plover Avenue. 
 

6. Approval of Council Minutes: 
 
A) March 8, 2021 – Regular Meeting 

 
Councilman Best moved to approve the meeting minutes of March 8, 2021.  Vice 
Mayor Garcia seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was 
as follows: Vice Mayor Garcia, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Mitchell, 
Councilman Fajet, and Mayor Bain voting Yes. 
 
7. Reports from Boards & Commissions: None at this time. 
 
8. Public Hearings: None at this time. 



 
 3 

  
9. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted): 
 

A) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of 
Miami Springs, Florida, Approving The Purchase Of Police Uniforms From Lou’s Police 
Distributors In An Amount Not To Exceed $25,000; Providing For A Waiver Of Competitive 
Bidding; Providing For Authorization; And Providing For An Effective Date (This item 
requires a 4/5 vote of Council per Section 31-11(E)(6)(g) of the City Code) 
 
Assistant City Manager Tammy Romero read the Resolution by title. 
 
Councilman Best moved to approve the Resolution as read.  Councilwoman Mitchell 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Garcia, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Mitchell, Councilman Fajet, and 
Mayor Bain voting Yes. 

 
B) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of 

Miami Springs, Florida, Authorizing The Retirement Of Police K-9 Shadow; Approving An 
Agreement For Transfer Of Ownership Of K-9 Shadow; Providing For Authorization; And 
Providing For An Effective Date 
Assistant City Manager Tammy Romero read the recommendation by title. 
 
Vice Mayor Garcia moved to approve the Resolution as read.  Councilman Best 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Garcia, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Mitchell, Councilman Fajet, and 
Mayor Bain voting Yes. 
 
 C) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of 
Miami Springs, Florida, Approving A Lease Agreement With Peterson’s Harley-Davidson Of 
Miami, LLC For Four Police Motorcycles In An Amount Not To Exceed $115,200 Over A 36 
Month Term; Providing For Authorization; And Providing For An Effective Date 
 
Assistant City Manager Tammy Romero read the recommendation by title. 
 
Vice Mayor Garcia moved to approve the Resolution as read.  Councilman Best 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Garcia, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Mitchell, Councilman Fajet, and 
Mayor Bain voting Yes. 
 
10. Old Business:   
 

A) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of 
Miami Springs, Florida, Approving A First Amendment To The Professional Services 
Agreement With Brenda Knight, A Licensed Franchisee Of Jazzercise, Inc.; Providing For 
Authorization; And Providing For An Effective Date 
 
City Manager William Alonso read the Resolution by title. 



 
 4 

 
Councilman Best moved to approve the Resolution as read.  Councilman Fajet 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Garcia, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Mitchell, Councilman Fajet, and 
Mayor Bain voting Yes. 

 
11. New Business: None at this time. 
 
12. Other Business: None at this time. 
 
13. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney 
 

City Attorney Haydee Sera thanked the City of Miami Springs for taking the lead on 
the vaccination efforts.  She has heard wonderful things from folks in the community 
about the high level of service and coordination of getting the vaccine accessible to 
all. 
  

B) City Manager 
 

City Manager William Alonso reminded the Council and residents that FEMA 
vaccination site will be in the City from April 1st to April 7th.  He also stated that the 
American Rescue Plan has allocated funding to the City in the amount of $5.8 million 
and will be available shortly for earmarking by the City Council. 
 

C) City Council 
 
Councilman Best thanked Mayor Bain for his years of service.  He said that Mayor 
Bain will be greatly missed and that it was an honor to sit on the Council with him.  
He thanked Omar Luna, Recreation Director, and his staff for their coordination of 
the FEMA COVID Vaccination site at the Recreation Center. 
 
Councilwoman Mitchell thanked the City Manager and senior center staff for all of 
their help with senior vaccinations in the community.  She announced that the Lions 
Club was hosting a food drive on Friday for anyone in need.  She thanked Mayor 
Bain for his years of service to the City, she said it was a true honor to sit with him 
on Council.  She presented him with a personalized gift she made. 
 
Councilman Fajet thanked Mayor Bain for his service as well.  He stated that Mayor 
Bain has selflessly served the City for many years and will be truly missed.  He 
appreciates everything has done for the community. 
 
Vice Mayor Garcia stated that the members that ran unopposed are genuinely 
appreciated by the community.  He stated that residents are happy with the work that 
they do and it shows. 
 



 
 5 

Mayor Bain thanked the Council members for their kind words and looks forward to 
the last meeting.   
 
14. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 8:15 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 6 

 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
This 12th day of April, 2021. 
 
 
           
Maria Puente Mitchell, Mayor 
 
 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION 
MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE 
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT 
EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 



         
Meeting Date: April 12, 2021  
 
To:   The Honorable Mayor Billy Bain and Members of the City Council 
 
Via:   William Alonso, City Manager/Finance Director 
    
From:   Armando Guzman, Chief of Police 
    
Subject:  FY 20/21 Motorcycle Radar System 
 
Recommendation: Recommendation by the Police Department that Council approve an expenditure 

to Stalker Radar Applied Concepts Inc., as a sole source provider, in an amount 
not to exceed $14,008.00, for 4 STALKER 2X Motorcycle Radar Systems as 
funds were approved in the FY 20/21 Budget, pursuant to Section §31.11 
(E)(6)(c) of the City Code. 

Discussion/Analysis: The purchase of 4 Stalker 2X Motorcycle Radar Systems will aid in expanding the 
longevity, reliability, and performance of the Police Department’s Motorcycles 
through its innovative features. This new system will help in reducing the wear 
and tear the current motorcycles face due to varying weather conditions and their 
daily use outdoors. Stalker's 2X Motorcycle System includes a motorcycle 
waterproof display, a DSR Ka Antenna, a waterproof remote/display mount, and 
4ft and 8ft Antenna cables, as well as a 36-month warranty. Apart from its Dual 
Zone feature which can monitor two zones from a single antenna, the 2X system 
has a Rear Traffic Alert feature to help increase safety in terms of Motor Officer's 
vulnerability to rear-end collisions. Stalker is a sole source provider and 
considering this fleet’s specific needs, the 2X Motorcycle Radar System is 
beneficial across all spectrums to this department. See attached Quote #2048924 
and Sole Source Letter. 

Submission Date and Time:    3/30/2021 2:19 PM____  
 

Submitted by: 
 
 
Department:  Police Department 
 
Prepared by:  Ariadna Quintana                
 
 
Attachments:       Yes          No 
 
 
Budgeted/Funded      Yes          No 
 

Approved by (sign as applicable): 
 
 
Dept. Head:   
  
 
Procurement:                                   
                               
 
Asst. City Mgr.:   
 
 
City Manager:   
 
 
 

Funding: 
 
                         
Dept./ Desc.:  Police Equipment 
                           
Account No.:   001-2001-521.46-03 
 
Additional Funding:                  N/A 
 
                                                                            
Amount previously approved:  $           
 
                       Current request:  $         14,008.00 
 
              Total vendor amount:  $          14,008.00 



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-  

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE 

PURCHASE OF POLICE MOTORCYCLE RADAR EQUIPMENT 

FROM APPLIED CONCEPTS, INC. IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 

EXCEED $14,008.00; PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION; AND 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Miami Springs (the “City”) is in need of radar equipment for 

four motorcycles for use by the City’s Police Department (the “Department”) to provide 

services for the safety of the City’s residents and visitors and facilitate the provision of 

day-to-day operations of the Department; and 

WHEREAS, Applied Concepts, Inc. (“Vendor”) is the sole provider of the Stalker 

2X Motorcycle Radar System (the “Equipment”) and has provided the quote attached 

hereto as Exhibit “A” (the “Quote”); and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager recommends that the purchase of the Equipment 

be deemed exempt from the competitive bidding procedures of the City Code pursuant to 

Section 31-11(E)(6)(c) of the City Code as a sole source purchase; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to approve the purchase of the Equipment 

from the Vendor consistent with the Quote in an amount not to exceed $14,008.00 

pursuant to Section 31-11(E)(6)(c) of the City Code; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Resolution is in the best interest and 

welfare of the residents of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. The above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 

Section 2. Approval. That the City Council hereby approves the purchase of 

the Equipment pursuant to Section 31-11(E)(6) of the City Code.  

Section 3. Authorization. That the City Council hereby authorizes the City 

Manager to purchase the Equipment from the Vendor consistent with the terms and 

conditions of the Quote attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” and to expend budgeted funds in 

an amount not to exceed $14,008.00. 



Res. No. 21-   
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Section 4. Effective Date.  That this Resolution shall be effective immediately 

upon adoption.  

The foregoing Resolution was offered by     who moved its 

adoption.  The motion was seconded by     and upon being put to a vote, the 

vote was as follows: 

Vice Mayor Bob Best     
Councilwoman Jacky Bravo    
Councilman Walter Fajet      
Councilman Victor Vazquez    
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell    

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this ____ day of April, 2021. 

 
 
 
 
              
      MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 

MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  
CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY 









 

           

Meeting Date: 4/12/2021  

 

To:   The Honorable Mayor Maria P. Mitchell and Members of the City Council 

 

Via:   William Alonso, City Manager/Fin. Director 

    

From:   Omar L. Luna, Recreation Director 

    

Subject: Aquatic Center Bulk Chemical Purchase - Professional Services Agreement  
 

RECOMMENDATION: Recommendation by Recreation that Council approve a Professional Services 

Agreement with Supreme Chemical and Pool Supply for an initial (1) one year term period with the option to 

renew (4) four additional (1) one year term periods through 09/31/2026, in the amount of $15,500, per the 

lowest responsible quote after obtaining three written quotes (attached – quantities were estimated on an annual 

usage for the purposes of obtaining quotes), for the pool located at the Aquatic Center as funds were budgeted 

in the FY20/21 Budget pursuant to Section §31.11 (C)(2) of the City Code.      

 

DISCUSSION: We have used Supreme Chemical as our vendor for the past (5) years. They have shown 

to be very dependable in addition to taking the time to become knowledgeable about our facility. Supreme 

Chemical was the lowest responsible bidder after receiving three quotes (attached). Supreme Chemical 

will be providing the following pool chemicals; bulk liquid chlorine, muriatic acid as well as calcium flake 

as needed to maintain the proper chemical balance of the pool. 

 
Submission Date and Time:    4/2/2021 10:58 AM____ 

 

Submitted by: 
 

 

Department: Recreation 

 

Prepared by:  Omar Luna 

 

 

Attachments:    Yes No 

 

 

Budgeted/ Funded:  Yes No 

 

Approved by (sign as applicable): 
 

 

Dept. Head: 
 

 

Procurement: 

 

 

Asst. City Mgr.:   

 

 

City Manager:  

 

 

Funding: 
 

 

Dept./ Desc.:  Parks and Recreation/Aquatics 

 

Account No.:  001-5702-572.52-06 

 

Additional Funding:   

 

 

Amount previously approved:  $        

 

                       Current request:  $       $15,500 

 

              Total vendor amount:  $       $15,500 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-  

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, APPROVING A POOL 
MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH SUPREME 
CHEMICAL AND POOL SUPPLY, INC. IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED BUDGETED FUNDS; PROVIDING FOR 
AUTHORIZATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Miami Springs (the “City”) is in need of a contractor to 

perform pool maintenance services for the City’s Aquatic Center (the “Services”); and  

WHEREAS, the City obtained three quotes for the Services and Supreme 

Chemical and Pool Supply, Inc. (“Contractor”) was the lowest bidder; and 

WHEREAS, in addition to being the lowest bidder for the Services, the City has 

used the Contractor to perform the Services over the past five years; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager recommends that the City approve the Pool 

Maintenance Services Agreement with the Contractor attached hereto as Exhibit “A” (the 

“Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, the City Council approves the Agreement and authorizes the City 

Manager to execute the Agreement on behalf of the City in substantially the form attached 

hereto as Exhibit “A” and expend budgeted funds; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Resolution is in the best interest and 

welfare of the residents of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. That the above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 

Section 2. Approval. That the City Council hereby approves the Agreement 

with the Contractor. 

Section 3. Authorization. That the City Council hereby authorizes the City 

Manager to execute the Agreement in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit 

“A,” subject to approval by the City Attorney as to form, content, and legal sufficiency and 

to expend budgeted funds.  



Res. No. 21-   
Page 2 of 2 

 

Section 4. Effective Date.  That this Resolution shall be effective immediately 

upon adoption.  

The foregoing Resolution was offered by     who moved its 

adoption.  The motion was seconded by     and upon being put to a vote, the 

vote was as follows: 

Vice Mayor Bob Best    
Councilwoman Jacky Bravo   
Councilman Walter Fajet    
Councilman Victor Vazquez   
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell   

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this ____ day of April, 2021. 

 
 
 
              
      MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 

MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  
CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY 



City of Miami Springs, FL   Page 1 of 12 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 

AND 

SUPREME CHEMICAL AND POOL SUPPLY, INC. 

THIS AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made effective as of the    day of 
    , 2021 (the “Effective Date”), by and between the CITY OF 
MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, a Florida municipal corporation, (the “City”), and SUPREME 
CHEMICAL AND POOL SUPPLY, INC., a Florida corporation (hereinafter, the “Consultant”). 

WHEREAS, the City desires certain pool maintenance services for its Aquatic Center 
pool; and  

WHEREAS, the Consultant will perform services on behalf of the City, all as further set 
forth in the Proposal dated March 22, 2021, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” (the “Services”); and 

WHEREAS, the Consultant and City, through mutual negotiation, have agreed upon a fee 
for the Services; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to engage the Consultant to perform the Services and provide 
the deliverables as specified below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions contained 
herein, the Consultant and the City agree as follows: 

1. Scope of Services.  

1.1. Consultant shall provide the Services set forth in the Proposal attached hereto as Exhibit 
“A” and incorporated herein by reference (the “Services”).  

1.2. Consultant shall furnish all reports, documents, and information obtained pursuant to this 
Agreement, and recommendations during the term of this Agreement (hereinafter 
“Deliverables”) to the City. 

2. Term/Commencement Date.   

2.1. The term of this Agreement shall be from the Effective Date through one year thereafter, 
unless earlier terminated in accordance with Paragraph 8.  Additionally, the City Manager 
may renew this Agreement for four additional one-year periods on the same terms as set 
forth herein upon written notice to the Consultant. 

2.2. Consultant agrees that time is of the essence and Consultant shall complete the Services 
within the term of this Agreement, unless extended by the City Manager. 



City of Miami Springs, FL   Page 2 of 12 

3. Compensation and Payment.  

3.1. Compensation for Services provided by Consultant shall be in accordance with the Proposal 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A.” Consultant shall be compensated in accordance with the 
rates provided on Exhibit A. Compensation shall not exceed $14,487.70 per year.    

3.2. Consultant shall deliver an invoice to City no more often than once per month detailing 
Services completed and the amount due to Consultant under this Agreement. Fees shall be 
paid in arrears each month, pursuant to Consultant’s invoice, which shall be based upon the 
percentage of work completed for each task invoiced. The City shall pay the Consultant in 
accordance with the Florida Prompt Payment Act after approval and acceptance of the 
Services by the City Manager. 

4. Subconsultants.  

4.1. The Consultant shall be responsible for all payments to any subconsultants and shall 
maintain responsibility for all work related to the Services. 

4.2. Consultant may only utilize the services of a particular subconsultant with the prior written 
approval of the City Manager, which approval may be granted or withheld in the City 
Manager’s sole and absolute discretion. 

5. City’s Responsibilities. 

5.1. City shall make available any maps, plans, existing studies, reports, staff and 
representatives, and other data pertinent to the Services and in possession of the City, and 
provide criteria requested by Consultant to assist Consultant in performing the Services.  

5.2. Upon Consultant’s request, City shall reasonably cooperate in arranging access to public 
information that may be required for Consultant to perform the Services. 

6. Consultant’s Responsibilities; Representations and Warranties. 

6.1. The Consultant shall exercise the same degree of care, skill and diligence in the 
performance of the Services as is ordinarily provided by a consultant under similar 
circumstances.  If at any time during the term of this Agreement or within two (2) years 
from the completion of this Agreement, it is determined that the Consultant’s Deliverables 
or Services are incorrect, not properly rendered, defective, or fail to conform to City 
requests, the Consultant shall at Consultant’s sole expense, immediately correct its 
Deliverables or Services. 

6.2. The Consultant hereby warrants and represents that at all times during the term of this 
Agreement it shall maintain in good standing all required licenses, certifications and permits 
required under Federal, State and local laws applicable to and necessary to perform the 
Services for City as an independent contractor of the City. Consultant further warrants and 
represents that it has the required knowledge, expertise, and experience to perform the 
Services and carry out its obligations under this Agreement in a professional and first class 
manner. 



City of Miami Springs, FL   Page 3 of 12 

6.3. The Consultant represents that is an entity validly existing and in good standing under the 
laws of Florida.  The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by 
Consultant have been duly authorized, and this Agreement is binding on Consultant and 
enforceable against Consultant in accordance with its terms.  No consent of any other 
person or entity to such execution, delivery and performance is required. 

7. Conflict of Interest.  

7.1. To avoid any conflict of interest or any appearance thereof, Consultant shall not, for the 
term of this Agreement, provide any consulting services to any private sector entities 
(developers, corporations, real estate investors, etc.), with any current, or foreseeable, 
adversarial issues in the City. 

8. Termination.  

8.1. The City Manager, without cause, may terminate this Agreement upon five (5) calendar 
days’ written notice to the Consultant, or immediately with cause. 

8.2. Upon receipt of the City's written notice of termination, Consultant shall immediately stop 
work on the project unless directed otherwise by the City Manager. 

8.3. In the event of termination by the City, the Consultant shall be paid for all work accepted 
by the City Manager up to the date of termination, provided that the Consultant has first 
complied with the provisions of Paragraph 8.4.   

8.4. The Consultant shall transfer all books, records, reports, working drafts, documents, maps, 
and data pertaining to the Services and the project to the City, in a hard copy and electronic 
format within fourteen (14) days from the date of the written notice of termination or the 
date of expiration of this Agreement.  

9. Insurance. 

9.1. Consultant shall secure and maintain throughout the duration of this agreement insurance 
of such types and in such amounts not less than those specified below as satisfactory to 
City, naming the City as an Additional Insured, underwritten by a firm rated A-X or better 
by A.M. Best and qualified to do business in the State of Florida. The insurance coverage 
shall be primary insurance with respect to the City, its officials, employees, agents, and 
volunteers naming the City as additional insured. Any insurance maintained by the City 
shall be in excess of the Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute to the Consultant’s 
insurance.  The insurance coverages shall include at a minimum the amounts set forth in 
this section and may be increased by the City as it deems necessary or prudent.  

9.1.1. Commercial General Liability coverage with limits of liability of not less than a 
$1,000,000 per Occurrence combined single limit for Bodily Injury and Property 
Damage. This Liability Insurance shall also include Completed Operations and 
Product Liability coverages and eliminate the exclusion with respect to property under 
the care, custody and control of Consultant.  The General Aggregate Liability limit 



City of Miami Springs, FL   Page 4 of 12 

and the Products/Completed Operations Liability Aggregate limit shall be in the 
amount of $2,000,000 each. 

9.1.2. Workers Compensation and Employer’s Liability insurance, to apply for all 
employees for statutory limits as required by applicable State and Federal laws. The 
policy(ies) must include Employer’s Liability with minimum limits of $1,000,000.00 
each accident. No employee, subcontractor or agent of the Consultant shall be allowed 
to provide Services pursuant to this Agreement who is not covered by Worker’s 
Compensation insurance.   

9.1.3. Business Automobile Liability with minimum limits of $1,000,000 per occurrence, 
combined single limit for Bodily Injury and Property Damage.  Coverage must be 
afforded on a form no more restrictive than the latest edition of the Business 
Automobile Liability policy, without restrictive endorsements, as filed by the 
Insurance Service Office, and must include Owned, Hired, and Non-Owned Vehicles. 

9.2. Certificate of Insurance.  Certificates of Insurance shall be provided to the City, 
reflecting the City as an Additional Insured (except with respect to Professional Liability 
Insurance and Worker’s Compensation Insurance), no later than ten (10) days after award 
of this Agreement and prior to the execution of this Agreement by City and prior to 
commencing Services.  Each certificate shall include no less than (30) thirty-day advance 
written notice to City prior to cancellation, termination, or material alteration of said 
policies or insurance.  The Consultant shall be responsible for assuring that the insurance 
certificates required by this Section remain in full force and effect for the duration of this 
Agreement, including any extensions or renewals that may be granted by the City. The 
Certificates of Insurance shall not only name the types of policy(ies) provided, but also 
shall refer specifically to this Agreement and shall state that such insurance is as required 
by this Agreement.  The City reserves the right to inspect and return a certified copy of 
such policies, upon written request by the City.  If a policy is due to expire prior to the 
completion of the Services, renewal Certificates of Insurance shall be furnished thirty (30) 
calendar days prior to the date of their policy expiration.  Each policy certificate shall be 
endorsed with a provision that not less than thirty (30) calendar days’ written notice shall 
be provided to the City before any policy or coverage is cancelled or restricted.  
Acceptance of the Certificate(s) is subject to approval of the City.  

9.3. Additional Insured. Except with respect to Professional Liability Insurance and Worker’s 
Compensation Insurance, the City is to be specifically included as an Additional Insured 
for the liability of the City resulting from Services performed by or on behalf of the 
Consultant in performance of this Agreement.  The Consultant’s insurance, including that 
applicable to the City as an Additional Insured, shall apply on a primary basis and any 
other insurance maintained by the City shall be in excess of and shall not contribute to the 
Consultant’s insurance.  The Consultant’s insurance shall contain a severability of interest 
provision providing that, except with respect to the total limits of liability, the insurance 
shall apply to each Insured or Additional Insured (for applicable policies) in the same 
manner as if separate policies had been issued to each. 



City of Miami Springs, FL   Page 5 of 12 

9.4. Loss Payee. The City is to be specifically named as a loss payee under the Consultant’s 
Professional Insurance policy so that the City will be a third party beneficiary entitled to 
receive all money payable under the relevant policy for any claims, damages, or losses in 
connection with, related to, or arising from Consultant’s Services or performance pursuant 
to this Agreement.   

9.5. Deductibles. All deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and be 
reasonably approved by the City. The Consultant shall be responsible for the payment of 
any deductible or self-insured retentions in the event of any claim. 

9.6. The provisions of this section shall survive termination of this Agreement.  

10. Nondiscrimination. During the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall not discriminate 
against any of its employees or applicants for employment because of their race, color, religion, 
sex, or national origin, and will abide by all Federal and State laws regarding 
nondiscrimination. 

11. Attorneys Fees and Waiver of Jury Trial.  

11.1. In the event of any litigation arising out of this Agreement, the prevailing party 
shall be entitled to recover its attorneys’ fees and costs, including the fees and expenses 
of any paralegals, law clerks and legal assistants, and including fees and expenses charged 
for representation at both the trial and appellate levels. 

11.2. IN THE EVENT OF ANY LITIGATION ARISING OUT OF THIS 
AGREEMENT, EACH PARTY HEREBY KNOWINGLY, IRREVOCABLY, 
VOLUNTARILY AND INTENTIONALLY WAIVES ITS RIGHT TO TRIAL BY 
JURY. 

12. Indemnification.  

12.1. Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents and 
employees, from and against any and all demands, claims, losses, suits, liabilities, causes 
of action, judgment or damages, arising from Consultant’s performance or non-
performance of any provision of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, liabilities 
arising from contracts between the Consultant and third parties made pursuant to this 
Agreement.  Consultant shall reimburse the City for all its expenses including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in and about the defense of any such claim or 
investigation and for any judgment or damages arising from Consultant’s performance or 
non-performance of this Agreement.   

12.2. Nothing herein is intended to serve as a waiver of sovereign immunity by the City 
nor shall anything included herein be construed as consent to be sued by third parties in 
any matter arising out of this Agreement or any other contract. The City is subject to 
section 768.28, Florida Statutes, as may be amended from time to time. 

12.3. The provisions of this section shall survive termination of this Agreement. 



City of Miami Springs, FL   Page 6 of 12 

13. Notices/Authorized Representatives. Any notices required by this Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall be deemed to have been properly given if transmitted by hand-delivery, by 
registered or certified mail with postage prepaid return receipt requested, or by a private postal 
service, addressed to the parties (or their successors) at the addresses listed on the signature 
page of this Agreement or such other address as the party may have designated by proper 
notice. 

14. Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and 
governed by the laws of the State of Florida.  Venue for any proceedings arising out of this 
Agreement shall be proper exclusively in Miami-Dade County, Florida. 

15. Entire Agreement/Modification/Amendment. 

15.1. This writing contains the entire Agreement of the parties and supersedes any prior 
oral or written representations.  No representations were made or relied upon by either 
party, other than those that are expressly set forth herein. 

15.2. No agent, employee, or other representative of either party is empowered to modify 
or amend the terms of this Agreement, unless executed with the same formality as this 
document. 

16. Ownership and Access to Records and Audits.  

16.1. Consultant acknowledges that all inventions, innovations, improvements, 
developments, methods, designs, analyses, drawings, reports, compiled information, and 
all similar or related information (whether patentable or not) which relate to Services to 
the City which are conceived, developed or made by Consultant during the term of this 
Agreement (“Work Product”) belong to the City. Consultant shall promptly disclose such 
Work Product to the City and perform all actions reasonably requested by the City 
(whether during or after the term of this Agreement) to establish and confirm such 
ownership (including, without limitation, assignments, powers of attorney and other 
instruments).  

16.2. Consultant agrees to keep and maintain public records in Consultant’s possession 
or control in connection with Consultant’s performance under this Agreement. The City 
Manager or her designee shall, during the term of this Agreement and for a period of three 
(3) years from the date of termination of this Agreement, have access to and the right to 
examine and audit any records of the Consultant involving transactions related to this 
Agreement.   Consultant additionally agrees to comply specifically with the provisions of 
Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes.  Consultant shall ensure that public records that are 
exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not 
disclosed, except as authorized by law, for the duration of the Agreement, and following 
completion of the Agreement until the records are transferred to the City. 

16.3. Upon request from the City’s custodian of public records, Consultant shall provide 
the City with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied 
within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided by Chapter 119, 
Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law.  



City of Miami Springs, FL   Page 7 of 12 

16.4. Unless otherwise provided by law, any and all records, including but not limited to 
reports, surveys, and other data and documents provided or created in connection with this 
Agreement are and shall remain the property of the City.  

16.5. Upon completion of this Agreement or in the event of termination by either party, 
any and all public records relating to the Agreement in the possession of the Consultant 
shall be delivered by the Consultant to the City Manager, at no cost to the City, within 
seven (7) days.  All such records stored electronically by Consultant shall be delivered to 
the City in a format that is compatible with the City’s information technology systems.  
Once the public records have been delivered upon completion or termination of this 
Agreement, the Consultant shall destroy any and all duplicate public records that are 
exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. 

16.6. Any compensation due to Consultant shall be withheld until all records are received 
as provided herein.   

16.7. Consultant’s failure or refusal to comply with the provisions of this section shall 
result in the immediate termination of this Agreement by the City. 

16.8. Notice Pursuant to Section 119.0701(2)(a), Florida Statutes. IF THE 
CONSULTANT HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE 
CONSULTANT’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS 
RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN 
OF PUBLIC RECORDS: ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC, 201 
WESTWARD DRIVE, MIAMI SPRINGS, FL 33166, 305-805-5006, 
GONZALEZE@MIAMISPRINGS-FL.GOV. 

17. Nonassignability. This Agreement shall not be assignable by Consultant unless such 
assignment is first approved by the City Manager.  The City is relying upon the apparent 
qualifications and expertise of the Consultant, and such firm’s familiarity with the City’s area, 
circumstances and desires.  

18. Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement shall to any extent be held invalid or 
unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and each 
remaining term and provision of this Agreement shall be valid and be enforceable to the fullest 
extent permitted by law. 

19. Independent Contractor. The Consultant and its employees, volunteers and agents shall be 
and remain an independent contractor and not an agent or employee of the City with respect to 
all of the acts and services performed by and under the terms of this Agreement.  This 
Agreement shall not in any way be construed to create a partnership, association or any other 
kind of joint undertaking, enterprise or venture between the parties. 

20. Compliance with Laws. The Consultant shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, 
rules, regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities in carrying out Services under this 



City of Miami Springs, FL   Page 8 of 12 

Agreement, and in particular shall obtain all required permits from all jurisdictional agencies 
to perform the Services under this Agreement at its own expense. 

21. Waiver. The failure of either party to this Agreement to object to or to take affirmative action 
with respect to any conduct of the other which is in violation of the terms of this Agreement 
shall not be construed as a waiver of the violation or breach, or of any future violation, breach 
or wrongful conduct. 

22. Survival of Provisions. Any terms or conditions of either this Agreement that require acts 
beyond the date of the term of the Agreement, shall survive termination of the Agreement, 
shall remain in full force and effect unless and until the terms or conditions are completed and 
shall be fully enforceable by either party. 

23. Prohibition of Contingency Fees. The Consultant warrants that it has not employed or 
retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the 
Consultant, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any 
person(s), company, corporation, individual or firm, other than a bona fide employee working 
solely for the Consultant, any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or any other consideration, 
contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. 

24. Public Entity Crimes Affidavit. Consultant shall comply with Section 287.133, Florida 
Statutes (Public Entity Crimes Statute), notification of which is hereby incorporated herein by 
reference, including execution of any required affidavit.  

25. E-Verify Affidavit. In accordance with Section 448.095, Florida Statutes, the City requires all 
contractors doing business with the City to register with and use the E-Verify system to verify 
the work authorization status of all newly hired employees. The City will not enter into a 
contract unless each party to the contract registers with and uses the E-Verify system. The 
contracting entity must provide of its proof of enrollment in E-Verify. For instructions on how 
to provide proof of the contracting entity’s participation/enrollment in E-Verify, please visit: 
https://www.e-verify.gov/faq/how-do-i-provide-proof-of-my-participationenrollment-in-e-
verify. By entering into this Agreement, the Contractor acknowledges that it has read Section 
448.095, Florida Statutes; will comply with the E-Verify requirements imposed by Section 
448.095, Florida Statutes, including but not limited to obtaining E-Verify affidavits from 
subcontractors; and has executed the required affidavit attached hereto and incorporated 
herein. 

26. Non-Exclusive Agreement. The City reserves the right to procure or acquire similar services 
from another provider while this Agreement is in full force and effect. 

27. Termination Due To Lack of Funding. This Agreement is subject to the condition precedents 
that: (i) City funds are available, appropriated and budgeted, for the Services annually for each 
year of the Term; (ii) the City secures and obtains any necessary proceeds, grants or loans for 
the accomplishment of the Services pursuant to any borrowing legislation adopted by the City 
Council relative to the Services; and (iii) the City Council enacts legislation or other necessary 
resolutions, which awards and authorizes the execution of this Agreement and the annual 
appropriation and budgeting for the Services. The City represents to Consultant that the City 



City of Miami Springs, FL   Page 9 of 12 

has adopted a resolution authorizing execution of this Agreement, if required by applicable 
law. 

28. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall 
be deemed an original and such counterparts shall constitute one and the same instrument.  

29.  Conflicts; Order of Priority. This document without exhibits is referred to as the “Base 
Agreement.” In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Agreement and any exhibits 
or attachments hereto, or any documents incorporated herein by reference, the conflict shall be 
resolved in the following order of priorities and the more stringent criteria for performance of 
the Services shall apply: 

29.1. First Priority: Base Agreement;  

29.2. Second Priority: Exhibit A – Proposal; 

 
[Remainder of page intentionally left blank. Signature pages follow.] 



City of Miami Springs, FL   Page 10 of 12 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day and year as first 
stated above. 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS  
 
 
 
By:        
William Alonso, CPA, CGFO 
City Manager 
 
Attest:  
 
 
By:        
Erika Gonzalez, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form and legal sufficiency:  
 
 
By:        
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, P.L. 
City Attorney 
 
Addresses for Notice:  
City of Miami Springs 
Attn: City Manager 
201 Westward Drive 

Miami Springs, FL 33166 
305-805-5011 (telephone) 
alonsow@miamisprings-fl.gov (email) 
 
With a copy to:  
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, P.L. 
Attn: Haydee Sera, Esq.  
City of Miami Springs City Attorney 
2525 Ponce de Leon Boulevard, Suite 700 
Coral Gables, FL 33134 
hsera@wsh-law.com (email) 

CONSULTANT 
 
 
 
By:        
 
Name:        
 
Title:        
 
Entity: Supreme Chemical and Pool Supply, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Addresses for Notice:  
1915 NE 153rd Street     
North Miami Beach, FL 33162    
       
       
305-947-8954    (telephone) 
supremechemicals@bellsouth.net  (email) 
 
With a copy to:  
       
       
       
       
     (telephone) 
     (email) 
 
 



 

City of Miami Springs, FL   Page 11 of 12 

E-VERIFY AFFIDAVIT 
 

In accordance with Section 448.095, Florida Statutes, the City requires all contractors doing 
business with the City to register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization 
status of all newly hired employees. The City will not enter into a contract unless each party to the 
contract registers with and uses the E-Verify system.  
 
The contracting entity must provide of its proof of enrollment in E-Verify. For instructions on 
how to provide proof of the contracting entity’s participation/enrollment in E-Verify, please visit: 
https://www.e-verify.gov/faq/how-do-i-provide-proof-of-my-participationenrollment-in-e-verify  
 
By signing below, the contracting entity acknowledges that it has read Section 448.095, Florida 
Statutes and will comply with the E-Verify requirements imposed by it, including but not limited 
to obtaining E-Verify affidavits from subcontractors.  
 
☐ Check here to confirm proof of enrollment in E-Verify has been attached to this Affidavit. 
 
In the presence of:      Signed, sealed and delivered by: 
 
              
Witness #1 Print Name:     Print Name:       
 
       Title:        
Witness #2 Print Name:     Entity Name:       
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
State of Florida 
County of     
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of ☐ physical presence or ☐ 
online notarization, this   day of     , 20 , by   
   (name of person) as        (type of authority) for 
     (name of party on behalf of whom instrument is executed).  
 
 
 

        
Notary Public (Print, Stamp, or Type as Commissioned) 

 Personally known to me; or 
 Produced identification (Type of Identification:     ) 
 Did take an oath; or  
 Did not take an oath  



 

City of Miami Springs, FL   Page 12 of 12 

EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-  

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, APPROVING A STATEWIDE 

MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT WITH THE FLORIDA DIVISION OF 

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT; PROVIDING FOR 

AUTHORIZATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the State of Florida (the “State”) and its municipalities are vulnerable to 

a wide range of catastrophic disasters which could disrupt essential services and destroy the 

infrastructure necessary to provide essential services   

WHEREAS, the State Emergency Management Act, Chapter 252, authorizes the 

State and its political subdivisions to provide emergency aid and assistance in the event 

of a disaster or emergency; and 

WHEREAS, Florida law also authorizes the State to coordinate the provision of 

any equipment, services, or facilities owned or organized by the State or it political 

subdivisions for use in the affected area upon the request of the duly constituted authority 

of the area; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Miami Springs (the “City”) Council wishes to authorize the 

request, provision, and receipt of interjurisdictional mutual assistance in accordance with the 

Emergency Management Act, Chapter 252, Florida Statutes among political subdivisions 

within the State; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to maximize the prompt, full, and effective use 

of resources of all participating governments in the event of an emergency or disaster by 

adopting the Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement (the “Agreement”) in substantially the form 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A”; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Resolution is in the best interest and 

welfare of the residents of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. The above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 

Section 2. Approval. That the City Council hereby approves the Agreement in 

substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A.”  



Res. No. 21-   
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Section 3. Authorization. That the City Council hereby authorizes the City 

Manager to execute the Agreement, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” 

subject to the approval of the City Attorney as to form, content, and legal sufficiency. 

Section 4. Effective Date.  That this Resolution shall be effective immediately 

upon adoption.  

The foregoing Resolution was offered by     who moved its 

adoption.  The motion was seconded by     and upon being put to a vote, the 

vote was as follows: 

Vice Mayor Bob Best     
Councilwoman Jacky Bravo     
Councilman Walter Fajet      
Councilman Victor Vazquez    
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell    

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this ____ day of April, 2021. 

 
 
 
 
              
      MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 

MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  
CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY 



STATEWIDE MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT 

(SMAA) INFORMATION SHEET 

https://www.floridadisaster.org/dem/response/logistics/

Signing the Agreement: 

A copy of the SMAA with original signature should be submitted, or two if you need one signed by 
FDEM and returned for your records. 

Counties should sign PAGE 15 of the agreement. 

Cities should sign PAGE 16 of the agreement. 

Educational Districts should sign PAGE 17 of the agreement. 

Community Colleges or State Universities should sign PAGE 18 of the agreement. 

Special Districts should sign PAGE 19 of the agreement. 

Authorities should sign PAGE 20 of the agreement. 

Native American Tribes should sign PAGE 21 of the agreement. 

Community Development Districts should sign PAGE 22 of the agreement. 

REQUIRED Documentation to Accompany the Agreement: 

Minutes or Resolution from your governing board, which indicates the agreement was adopted or 
approved. 

A Certificate of Liability Insurance or Resolution of Self Insurance. 

A completed copy of Form C, PAGE 23 of the agreement. 

FDEM Contact Information: 

Kimberly Alvarez-Estrada
Mutual Aid Branch Director & EMAC Coordinator 
Bureau of Response, Logistics Section
Kimberly.Alvarez-Estrada@em.myflorida.com 
O: (850) 815-4222  M: (850) 901-8456 

Florida Division of Emergency Management  
2555 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-2100 



 

 
S T A T E  OF   F L OR I D A 

D I V I S I O N O F E M E R G E N C Y M A N A G E M E N T 
 
RON DESANTIS JARED MOSKOWITZ 

Governor      Director 

 

 

 

STATEWIDE MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT 
 

 

This Agreement is between the FLORIDA DIVISION OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

(“Division”) and the local government signing this Agreement (the “Participating Parties”). This 

agreement is based on the existence of the following conditions: 

A. The State of Florida is vulnerable to a wide range of disasters that are likely to cause the 

disruption of essential services and the destruction of the infrastructure needed to deliver those services. 

B. Such disasters are likely to exceed the capability of any one local government to cope with the 

emergency with existing resources. 

C. Such disasters may also give rise to unusual technical needs that the local government may be 

unable to meet with existing resources, but that other local governments may be able to offer. 

D. The Emergency Management Act, Chapter 252, provides each local government of the state 

the authority to develop and enter into mutual aid agreements within the state for reciprocal emergency aid 

and assistance in case of emergencies too extensive to be dealt with unassisted, and through such agreements 

to ensure the timely reimbursement of costs incurred by the local governments which render such 

assistance. 

E. Pursuant to Chapter 252, the Division has the authority to coordinate assistance between local 

governments during emergencies and to concentrate available resources where needed. 

Based on the existence of the foregoing conditions, the parties agree to the following: 
 

ARTICLE I. 
 

Definitions.  As used in this Agreement, the following expressions shall have the following meanings: 
 
 
 

1 



2  

 

A. The “Agreement” is this Agreement, which shall be referred to as the Statewide Mutual Aid 

Agreement (“SMAA”). 

B. The “Division” is the Division of Emergency Management 
 

C. The “Participating Parties” to this Agreement are the Division and any and all special 

districts, educational districts, and other local and regional governments signing this Agreement. 

D. The “Requesting Parties” to this Agreement are Participating Parties who request assistance 

during an emergency. 

E. The “Assisting Parties” to this Agreement are Participating Parties who render assistance in an 

emergency  to a Requesting Party. 

F. The “State Emergency Operations Center” is the facility designated by the State Coordinating 

Officer to manage and coordinate assistance to local governments during an emergency. 

G. The “Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan” is the biennial Plan issued by the 

Division in accordance with § 252.35(2)(a), Florida Statutes. 

H. The “State Coordinating Officer” is the official whom the Governor designates, by Executive 

Order, to act for the Governor in responding to a disaster, and to exercise the powers of the Governor in 

accordance with the Executive Order, Chapter 252, Florida Statutes, and the State Comprehensive 

Emergency Management Plan. 

I. The “Period of Assistance” is the time during which any Assisting Party renders assistance to 

any Requesting Party in an emergency, and shall include both the time necessary for the resources and 

personnel of the Assisting Party to travel to the place specified by the Requesting Party and the time 

necessary to return them to their place of origin or to the headquarters of the Assisting Party. 

J. A “special district” is any local or regional governmental entity which is an independent 

special district within the meaning of section 189.012(3), Florida Statutes, regardless of whether established 

by  local, special, or general act, or by rule, ordinance, resolution, or interlocal agreement. 



3  

 

K. An “educational district” is any school district within the meaning  of section 1001.30, 

Florida Statutes and any community school and state university within the meaning of section 1000.21, 

Florida  Statutes. 

L. An “interlocal agreement” is any agreement between local governments within the meaning 

of section 163.01(3)(a), Florida Statutes. 

M. A “local government” is any educational district or any entity that is a “local governmental 

entity” within the meaning of section 11.45(1)(e), Florida Statutes. 

N. Any expressions not assigned definitions elsewhere in this Agreement shall have the 

definitions assigned them by the Emergency Management Act. 

ARTICLE II. 
 

Applicability of the Agreement. A Participating Party may request assistance under this Agreement  for 
 

a “major” or “catastrophic disaster” as defined in section 252.34, Florida Statutes. If the Participating 

Party has no other mutual aid agreement that covers a “minor” disaster or other emergencies too extensive 

to be dealt with unassisted, it may also invoke assistance under this Agreement for a “minor disaster” or 

other such emergencies. 

ARTICLE III. 
 

Invocation of the Agreement. In the event of an emergency or threatened emergency, a Participating Party 
 

may invoke assistance under this Agreement by requesting it from any other Participating Party, or from 

the Division if, in the judgment of the Requesting Party, its own resources are inadequate to meet the 

emergency. 

A. Any request for assistance under this Agreement may be oral, but within five (5) calendar 

days must be confirmed in writing by the County Emergency Management Agency of the Requesting 

Party, unless the State Emergency Operations Center has been activated in response to the emergency 

for which assistance is requested. 



4  

B. All requests for assistance under this Agreement shall be transmitted by County Emergency 

Management Agency of the Requesting Party to either the Division, or to another Participating Party. If 

the Requesting Party transmits its request for Assistance directly to a Participating Party other than the 

Division, the Requesting Party and Assisting Party shall keep the Division advised of their activities. 

C. The Division shall relay any requests for assistance under this Agreement to such other 

Participating Parties as it may deem appropriate, and shall coordinate the activities of the Assisting Parties 

so as to ensure timely assistance to the Requesting Party. All such activities shall be carried out in 

accordance with the State’s Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan. 

D. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to allocate liability for the costs of personnel, 

equipment, supplies, services and other resources that are staged by the Division, or by other agencies of 

the State of Florida, for use in responding to an emergency pending the assignment of such personnel, 

equipment, supplies, services and other resources to an emergency support function/mission. The 

documentation, payment, repayment, and reimbursement of all such costs shall be rendered in accordance 

with the Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan, and general accounting best practices procedures 

and protocols. 

ARTICLE IV. 
 

Responsibilities  of  Requesting  Parties. To  the  extent  practicable,  all  Requesting  Parties  seeking 
 

assistance under this Agreement shall provide the following information to the Division and the other 

Participating Parties. In providing such information, the Requesting Party may use Form B attached to 

this Agreement, and the completion of Form B by the Requesting Party shall be deemed sufficient to meet 

the requirements of this Article: 

A. A description of the damage sustained or threatened; 
 

B. An identification of the specific Emergency Support Function or Functions for which such 

assistance is needed; 



5  

C. A description of the specific type of assistance needed within each Emergency Support 

Function; 

D. A description of the types of personnel, equipment, services, and supplies needed for each 

specific type of assistance, with an estimate of the time each will be needed; 

E. A description of any public infrastructure for which assistance will be needed; 
 

F. A description of any sites or structures outside the territorial jurisdiction of the Requesting 

Party needed as centers to stage incoming personnel, equipment, supplies, services, or other resources; 

G. The place, date and time for personnel of the Requesting Party to meet and receive the 

personnel and equipment of the Assisting Party; and 

H. A technical description of any communications or telecommunications equipment needed to 

ensure timely communications between the Requesting Party and any Assisting Parties. 

ARTICLE V. 
 

Responsibilities  of  Assisting  Parties.  Each  Participating  Party  shall  render  assistance  under  this 
 

Agreement to any Requesting Party to the extent practicable that its personnel, equipment, resources and 

capabilities can render assistance. If a Participating Party which has received a request for assistance 

under this Agreement determines that it has the capacity to render some or all of such assistance, it shall 

provide the following information to the Requesting Party and shall transmit it without delay to the 

Requesting Party and the Division. In providing such information, the Assisting Party may use Form B 

attached to this Agreement, and the completion of Form B by the Assisting Party shall be deemed 

sufficient to meet the requirements of this Article: 

A. A description of the personnel, equipment, supplies and services it has available, together 

with a description of the qualifications of any skilled personnel; 

B. An estimate of the time such personnel, equipment, supplies, and services will continue to be 

available; 



6  

C. An estimate of the time it will take to deliver such personnel, equipment, supplies, and 

services at the date, time and place specified by the Requesting Party; 

D. A technical description of any communications and telecommunications equipment available 

for timely communications with the Requesting Party and other Assisting Parties; and 

E. The names of all personnel whom the Assisting Party designates as Supervisors. 
 

F. The estimated costs of the provision of assistance (use FEMA’s Schedule of Equipment Rates 

spreadsheet attached to Form B.) 

ARTICLE VI. 
 

Rendition  of  Assistance. After the Assisting Party has delivered its personnel, equipment, supplies, 
 

services, or other resources to the place specified by the Requesting Party, the Requesting Party shall give 

specific assignments to the Supervisor(s) of the Assisting Party, who shall be responsible for directing the 

performance of these assignments. The Assisting Party shall have authority to direct the manner in which 

the assignments are performed. In the event of an emergency that affects the Assisting Party, all 

personnel, equipment, supplies, services and other resources of the Assisting Party shall be subject to 

recall by the Assisting Party upon not less than five (5) calendar days’ notice or, if such notice is 

impracticable, as much notice as is practicable under the circumstances. 

A. For operations at the scene of catastrophic and major disasters, the Assisting Party shall to the 

fullest extent practicable give its personnel and other resources sufficient equipment and supplies to make 

them self-sufficient for food, shelter, and operations unless the Requesting Party has specified the contrary. 

For minor disasters and other emergencies, the Requesting Party shall be responsible to provide food and 

shelter for the personnel of the Assisting Party unless the Requesting Party has specified the contrary. In 

its request for assistance the Requesting Party may specify that Assisting Parties send only self-sufficient 

personnel  or self-sufficient resources. 

B. Unless the Requesting Party has specified the contrary, it shall to the fullest extent practicable, 



7  

coordinate all communications between its personnel and those of any Assisting Parties, and shall 

determine all frequencies and other technical specifications for all communications and telecommunications 

equipment to be used. 

C. Personnel of the Assisting Party who render assistance under this Agreement shall receive 

their usual wages, salaries and other compensation, and shall have all the duties, responsibilities, 

immunities, rights, interests, and privileges incident to their usual employment. If personnel of the Assisting 

Party hold local licenses or certifications limited to the county or municipality of issue, then the Requesting 

Party shall recognize and honor those licenses or certifications for the duration of the support. 

ARTICLE VII. 
 

Procedures for Reimbursement.  Unless the Division or the Assisting Party, as the case may be, state 
 

the contrary in writing, the ultimate responsibility for the reimbursement of costs incurred under this 

Agreement shall rest with the Requesting Party, subject to the following conditions and exceptions: 

A. In accordance with this Agreement, the Division shall pay the costs incurred by an Assisting 

Party in responding to a request that the Division initiates on its own, and not for another Requesting 

Party. 

B. An Assisting Party shall bill the Division or other Requesting Party as soon as practicable, but 

not later than thirty (30) calendar days after the Period of Assistance has closed. Upon the request of any 

of the concerned Participating Parties, the State Coordinating Officer may extend this deadline for cause. 

C. If the Division or the Requesting Party protests any bill or item on a bill from an Assisting 

Party, it shall do so in writing as soon as practicable, but in no event later than thirty (30) calendar days 

after the bill is received. Failure to protest any bill or billed item in writing within thirty (30) calendar 

days shall constitute agreement to the bill and the items on the bill and waive the right to contest the bill. 

D. If the Division protests any bill or item on a bill from an Assisting Party, the Assisting Party 

shall have thirty (30) calendar days from the date of protest to present the bill or item to the original 



8  

Requesting Party for payment, subject to any protest by the Requesting Party. 
 

E. If the Assisting Party cannot reach a mutual agreement with the Division or the Requesting 

Party to the settlement of any protested bill or billed item, the Division, the Assisting Party, or the 

Requesting Party may elect binding arbitration to determine its liability for the protested bill or billed 

item in accordance with Section F of this Article. 

F. If the Division or a Participating Party elects binding arbitration, it may select as an arbitrator 
 

any elected official of another Participating Party, or any other official of another Participating Party 

whose normal duties include emergency management, and the other Participating Party shall also select 

such an official as an arbitrator, and the arbitrators thus chosen shall select another such official as a third 

arbitrator. 

G. The three (3) arbitrators shall convene by teleconference or videoconference within thirty (30) 

calendar days to consider any documents and any statements or arguments by the Department, the 

Requesting Party, or the Assisting Party concerning the protest, and shall render a decision in writing not 

later than ten (10) business days after the close of the hearing. The decision of a majority of the 

arbitrators shall bind the parties, and shall be final. 

H. If the Requesting Party has not forwarded a request through the Division, or if an Assisting 

Party has rendered assistance without being requested to do so by the Division, the Division shall not be 

liable for the costs of any such assistance. All requests to the Federal Emergency Management Agency 

(FEMA) for the reimbursement of costs incurred by any Participating Party shall be made by and through 

the Division. 

I. If FEMA denies any request for reimbursement of costs which the Division has already 

advanced to an Assisting Party, the Assisting Party shall repay such costs to the Division, but the Division 

may waive such repayment for cause. 

ARTICLE VIII. 



9  

Costs Eligible for Reimbursement. The costs incurred by the Assisting Party under this Agreement 
 

shall be reimbursed as needed to make the Assisting Party whole to the fullest extent practicable. 
 

A. Employees of the Assisting Party who render assistance under this Agreement shall be 

entitled to receive from the Assisting Party all their usual wages, salaries, and any and all other 

compensation for mobilization, hours worked, and demobilization. Such compensation shall include any 

and all contributions for insurance and retirement, and such employees shall continue to accumulate 

seniority at the usual rate. As between the employees and the Assisting Party, the employees shall have 

all the duties, responsibilities, immunities, rights, interests and privileges incident to their usual 

employment. The Requesting Party shall reimburse the Assisting Party for these costs of employment. 

B. The costs of equipment supplied by the Assisting Party shall be reimbursed at the rental rate 

established in FEMA’ s Schedule of Equipment Rates ( attached to Form B) , or at any other 

rental rate agreed to by the Requesting Party. In order to be eligible for reimbursement, equipment must 

be in actual operation performing eligible work. The labor costs of the operator are not included in the rates 

and should be approved separately from equipment costs. The Assisting Party shall pay for fuels, other 

consumable supplies, and repairs to its equipment as needed to keep the equipment in a state of operational 

readiness. Rent for the equipment shall be deemed to include the cost of fuel and other consumable 

supplies, maintenance, service, repairs, and ordinary wear and tear. With the consent of the Assisting 

Party, the Requesting Party may provide fuels, consumable supplies, maintenance, and repair services 

for such equipment at the site. In that event, the Requesting Party may deduct the actual costs of such fuels, 

consumable supplies, maintenance, and services from the total costs otherwise payable to the Assisting 

Party. If the equipment is damaged while in use under this Agreement and the Assisting Party receives 

payment for such damage under any contract of insurance, the Requesting Party may deduct such payment 

from any item or items billed by the Assisting Party for any of the costs for such damage that may 

otherwise be payable. 



10  

C. The Requesting Party shall pay the total costs for the use and consumption of any and all 

consumable supplies delivered by the Assisting Party for the Requesting Party under this Agreement. In 

the case of perishable supplies, consumption shall be deemed to include normal deterioration, spoilage 

and damage notwithstanding the exercise of reasonable care in its storage and use. Supplies remaining 

unused shall be returned to the Assisting Party in usable condition upon the close of the Period of 

Assistance, and the Requesting Party may deduct the cost of such returned supplies from the total costs 

billed by the Assisting Party for such supplies. If the Assisting Party agrees, the Requesting Party may 

also replace any and all used consumable supplies with like supplies in usable condition and of like grade, 

quality and quantity within the time allowed for reimbursement under this Agreement. 

D. The Assisting Party shall keep records to document all assistance rendered under this 

Agreement. Such records shall present information sufficient to meet the audit requirements specified in 

the regulations of FEMA and any applicable circulars issued by the State of Florida Office of 

Management and Budget. Upon reasonable notice, the Assisting Party shall make its records available to 

the Division and the Requesting Party for inspection or duplication between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. on 

all weekdays, except for official holidays. 

ARTICLE IX. 
 

Insurance. Each Participating Party shall determine for itself what insurance to procure, if any. With the 
 

exceptions in this Article, nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to require any Participating Party 

to procure insurance. 

A. Each Participating Party shall procure employers’ insurance meeting the requirements of the 

Workers’ Compensation Act, as amended, affording coverage for any of its employees who may be 

injured while performing any activities under the authority of this Agreement, and shall file with the 

Division a certificate issued by the insurer attesting to such coverage. 

B. Any Participating Party that elects additional insurance affording liability coverage for any 



11  

activities that may be performed under the authority of this Agreement shall file with the Division a 

certificate issued by the insurer attesting to such coverage. 

C. Any Participating Party that is self-insured with respect to any line or lines of insurance shall 

file with the Division copies of all resolutions in current effect reflecting its determination to act as a self- 

insurer. 

D. Subject to the limits of such liability insurance as any Participating Party may elect to 

procure, nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to waive, in whole or in part, any immunity any 

Participating Party may have in any judicial or quasi-judicial proceeding. 

E. Each Participating Party which renders assistance under this Agreement shall be deemed to 

stand in the relation of an independent contractor to all other Participating Parties, and shall not be 

deemed to be the agent of any other Participating Party. 

F. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to relieve any Participating Party of liability for 

its own conduct and that of its employees. 

G. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to obligate any Participating Party to indemnify 

any other Participating Party from liability to third parties. 

ARTICLE X. 
 

General Requirements. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary elsewhere in this Agreement, all 
 

Participating Parties shall be subject to the following requirements in the performance of this Agreement: 
 

A. To the extent that assistance under this Agreement is funded by State funds, the obligation of 

any statewide instrumentality of the State of Florida to reimburse any Assisting Party under this Agreement 

is contingent upon an annual appropriation by the Legislature. 

B. All bills for reimbursement under this Agreement from State funds shall be submitted in detail 

sufficient for auditing purposes. To the extent that such bills represent costs incurred for travel, such bills 

shall  be  submitted  in  accordance  with  section  112.061,  Florida  Statutes,  and  any  applicable 



12  

requirements for the reimbursement of state employees  for travel costs. 
 

C. All Participating Parties shall allow public access to all documents, papers, letters or other 

materials subject to the requirements of the Public Records Act, as amended, and made or received by any 

Participating Party in conjunction with this Agreement. 

D. No Participating Party may hire employees in violation of the employment restrictions in the 

Immigration and Nationality Act, as amended. 

E. No costs reimbursed under this Agreement may be used directly or indirectly to influence 

legislation or any other official action by the Legislature of the State of Florida or any of its agencies. 

F. Any communication to the Division under this Agreement shall be sent to the Director, 

Division of Emergency Management, 2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2100. 

Any communication to any other Participating Party shall be sent to the official or officials specified by 

that Participating Party on Form C attached to this Agreement. For the purpose of this Section, any such 

communication may be sent by the U.S. Mail, e-mail, or by facsimile. 

ARTICLE XI. 
 

Effect of Agreement. Upon its execution by a Participating Party, this Agreement shall have the 
 

following effect with respect to that Participating Party: 
 

A. The execution of this Agreement by any Participating Party which is a signatory to the 

Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement of 1994 shall terminate the rights, interests, duties, and responsibilities 

and obligations of that Participating Party under that agreement, but such termination shall not affect the 

liability of the Participating Party for the reimbursement of any costs due under that agreement, regardless 

of whether billed or unbilled. 

B. The execution of this Agreement by any Participating Party which is a signatory to the Public 

Works Mutual Aid Agreement shall terminate the rights, interests, duties, responsibilities and obligations 

of that Participating Party under that agreement, but such termination shall not affect the liability of the 



13  

Participating Party for the reimbursement of any costs due under that agreement, regardless of whether 

billed or unbilled. 

C. Upon the activation of this Agreement by the Requesting Party, this Agreement shall 

supersede any other existing agreement between it and any Assisting Party to the extent that the former 

may be inconsistent with the latter. 

D. Unless superseded by the execution of this Agreement in accordance with Section A of this 

Article, the Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement of 1994 shall terminate and cease to have legal existence 

after June 30, 2001. 

E. Upon its execution by any Participating Party, this Agreement will continue in effect for one 
 

(1) year from its date of execution by that Participating Party, and it shall automatically renew each year 

after its execution, unless within sixty (60) calendar days before  that  date  the  Participating  Party 

notifies the Division, in writing, of its intent to withdraw from the Agreement. 

F. The Division shall transmit any amendment to this Agreement by sending the amendment to 

all Participating Parties not later than five (5) business days after its execution by the Division. Such 

amendment shall take effect not later than sixty (60) calendar days after the date of its execution by the 

Division, and shall then be binding on all Participating Parties. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, 

any Participating Party who objects to the amendment may withdraw from the Agreement by notifying 

the Division in writing of its intent to do so within that time in accordance with Section E of this Article. 

ARTICLE XII. 
 

Interpretation and Application of Agreement. The interpretation and application of this Agreement 
 

shall be governed by the following conditions: 
 

A. The obligations and conditions resting upon the Participating Parties under this  Agreement are 

not independent, but dependent. 

B. Time shall be of the essence of this Agreement, and of the performance of all conditions, 



14  

obligations, duties, responsibilities, and promises under it. 
 

C. This Agreement states all the conditions, obligations, duties, responsibilities, and promises of 

the Participating Parties with respect to the subject of this Agreement, and there are no conditions, 

obligations, duties, responsibilities, or promises other than those expressed in this Agreement. 

D. If any sentence, clause, phrase, or other portion of this Agreement is ruled unenforceable or 

invalid, every other sentence, clause, phrase, or other portion of the Agreement shall remain in full force 

and effect, it being the intent of the Division and the other Participating Parties that every portion of the 

Agreement shall be severable from every other portion to the fullest extent practicable. The Division 

reserves the right, at its sole and absolute discretion, to change, modify, add, or remove portions of any 

sentence, clause, phrase, or other portion of this Agreement that conflicts with state law, regulation, or 

policy. If the change is minor, the Division will notify the Participating Party of the change and such 

changes will become effective immediately; therefore, please check these terms periodically for changes. 

If the change is substantive, the Participating Party may be required to execute the Agreement with the 

adopted changes. Your continued or subsequent use of this Agreement following the posting of minor 

changes to this Agreement will mean you accept those changes. 

E. The waiver of any obligation or condition in this Agreement by a Participating Party shall not 

be construed as a waiver of any other obligation or condition in this Agreement. 

NOTE: On February 26, 2018, this Agreement was modified by the Division of Emergency Management. 

This document replaces the August 20, 2007 edition of the Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement; however, 

any and all Agreements previously executed shall remain in full force and effect. Any local government, 

special district, or educational institution which has yet to execute this Agreement should use the 

February 26, 2018 edition for the purposes of becoming a signatory. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Participating Parties have duly executed this Agreement on the 

date specified below: 



15  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOR ADOPTION BY A COUNTY 
 

 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
DIVISION OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

 
 

By:     
Director 

Date:    

 
 
 

 

 
 

ATTEST: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COUNTY, 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
 
 

By:  By:    
 

Deputy Clerk Chairman 
 

Date:    
 

Approved as to Form: 
 
 

By:    
County Attorney 



16  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOR ADOPTION BY A CITY 
 
 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DIVISION OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

 
 

By:     
Director 

Date:    

 
 
 

 

 
 

ATTEST: CITY OF 
 

CITY CLERK STATE OF FLORIDA 
 

By:  By:     
 
 

Title:  Title:    
 
 
 

Date:    
 
 

Approved as to Form: 
 
 

By:    
City Attorney 



17  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOR ADOPTION BY AN EDUCATIONAL DISTRICT 
 

 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
DIVISION OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

 
 
 

By:     
Director 

Date:    

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 
STATE OF FLORIDA 

SCHOOL DISTRICT, 

 
 
 

By:  By:     
 
 

Title:  Title:    
 
 
 

Date:    
 
 

Approved as to Form: 
 
 

By:    
Attorney for District 



18  

 
 
 
 
 
 

FOR ADOPTION BY A COMMUNITY COLLEGE OR STATE UNIVERSITY 
 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DIVISION OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

 
 

By:     
Director 

Date:    

 
 
 

 

 
 

ATTEST: BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF   
COMMUNITY COLLEGE, STATE OF FLORIDA 

 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF   

UNIVERSITY, STATE OF FLORIDA 
 
 

By:  By:    
 

Clerk Chairman 
 

Date:    
 

Approved as to Form: 
 
 

By:      
Attorney for Board 



19  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOR ADOPTION BY A SPECIAL DISTRICT 
 

 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DIVISION OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

 
 
 

By:      
Director 

Date:    

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 
STATE OF FLORIDA 

SPECIAL DISTRICT, 

 
 
 

By:  By:     
 
 

Title:  Title:    
 
 
 

Date:    
 
 

Approved as to Form: 
 
 

By:    
Attorney for District 



20  

 
 
 
 
 

FOR ADOPTION BY AN AUTHORITY 
 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DIVISION OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

 
 

By:     
Director 

Date:    

 
 
 

 

 
 

ATTEST: BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
 

 

AUTHORITY, STATE OF FLORIDA 
 
 

By:  By:    
 

Clerk Chairman 
 

Date:    
 

Approved as to Form: 
 
 

By:      
Attorney for Board 



21  

 

FOR ADOPTION BY A NATIVE AMERICAN TRIBE 
 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DIVISION OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

 
 

By:     
Director 

Date:    

 
 
 

 

 
 

ATTEST: TRIBAL COUNCIL OF THE 

TRIBE OF FLORIDA 

 
By:  By:    

 

Council Clerk Chairman 
 

Date:    
 

Approved as to Form: 
 
 

By:      
Attorney for Council 



22  

 
 
 
 
 

FOR ADOPTION BY A COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DIVISION OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

 
 

By:     
Director 

Date:    

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 
STATE OF FLORIDA 

 
 

By: By:     
 
 

Title: Title:    
 
 
 

Date:    
 
 

Approved as to Form: 
 
 

By:    
Attorney for District 

 
Date:     



23  

 

FORM C 
 

CONTACT INFORMATION FOR AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES 
 
Name of Government:   

Mailing Address:     

 
 

Authorized Representative Contact Information 

Primary Authorized Representative 

Name:    

Title:    

Address:             

Day Phone:    

Facsimile:    

1st Alternate Authorized Representative 

Night Phone:      

Email:    

 
 

Name:    

Title:    

Address:             

Day Phone:    

Facsimile:    

2nd Alternate Authorized Representative 

Night Phone:      

Email:    

 
 

Name:    

Title:    

Address:             

Day Phone:    

Facsimile:    

Night Phone:      

Email:    
 

***PLEASE UPDATE AS ELECTIONS OR APPOINTMENTS OCCUR*** 



24  

SAMPLE AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION 

FOR ADOPTION OF 
STATEWIDE MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT 

 

RESOLUTION NO.    
 

WHEREAS, the State of Florida Emergency Management Act, Chapter 252, authorizes 
the State and its political subdivisions to provide emergency aid and assistance in the event of a 
disaster or emergency; and 

 
WHEREAS, the statutes also authorize the State to coordinate the provision of any 

equipment, services, or facilities owned or organized by the State or it political subdivisions for 
use in the affected area upon the request of the duly constituted authority of the area; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution authorizes the request, provision, and receipt of 

interjurisdictional mutual assistance in accordance with the Emergency Management Act, 
Chapter 252, among political subdivisions within the State; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by    

  that in order to maximize the 
prompt, full and effective use of resources of all participating governments in the event of an 
emergency or disaster we hereby adopt the Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement which is attached 
hereto and incorporated by reference. 

 
ADOPTED BY:    

 

DATE: 
 

 
I certify that the foregoing is an accurate copy of the Resolution adopted by 

 
  on . 

 

BY:     
 

TITLE:    
 

DATE:     



Req. Party: Assisting Party:

Event: New/Amended:

Mission #: Mission Type:

Name: E‐Mail Address:

Phone Number: Other:

Date Needed: Date Released:

Deployment 

Location:
Facility Name:

City: Zip Code:

Resource Capabilities Requested:

Deployment Conditions

Mission Description:

This section is to be completed by the requesting party. The requesting Party is responsible for reimbursing the 

assisting party for eligible expenses detailed in Section II.

Requestor Information

Mission Information

Deployment Dates (including travel dates)

Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement Form B

Florida Division of Emergency Management

Section I ‐ Resource Request

Point of Contact

SMAA Form B ‐ Section 1



Working Conditions:

Comments:

Health & Safety Concerns: If YES, please elaborate below

Comments:

Is Lodging Available? If NO, please elaborate on lodging availability 

Comments:

Will meals be provided? If NO, please elaborate on meal availability

Comments:

Will other logistics be provided? If YES, please elaborate

Comments:

Other Mission Information or Comments:

Name: Title:

Signature:

Date:

Deployment Logistics

Authorized Representative Approval

SMAA Form B ‐ Section 1



Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement Form B

Assisting Party  Requesting Party:

Event: New/Amended:

Mission #: Mission Type:

Name: E‐Mail Address:

Phone Number: Other:

Date available: Return Date:

Deployment 

Location:
Facility Name:

City: Zip Code:

Florida Division of Emergency Management

Section II ‐ Cost Estimate
This section is to be completed by the assisting party. This section includes the tabs; Personnel, Travel, 

Equipment, & Other. All estimated costs should be included in Section II.

Assisting Party Information

Point of Contact

Is this resource self‐sustained for at least 72 hours? Or will additional logistics support be needed from the 

requesting party? Please provide information below.

Deployment Cost Summary

Deployment Dates (including travel dates)

Resource capabilities available:

Mission Information

SMAA Form B ‐ Section II



Personnel Costs:

Travel Costs:

Equipment:

Commodities:

Other Comments:

Name: Title:

Signature:

Date:

‐$                                                       

Vehicle

Total Travel

‐$                                                       

‐$                                                       

‐$                                                       

‐$                                                       

‐$                                                       

‐$                                                       

Note: FDEM only  reimburses for actual hours worked. "Portal‐to‐Portal," or standby time is not eligible for 

reimbursement. ICS 214 Forms are required for reimbursement.

Meals

Lodging

These costs are estimated to provide the requesting state an estimate of the expenses they are 

required to reimburse. Reimbursement will be based upon actual expenses with verifiable 

documentation provided by the assisting party at the end of the deployment. 

‐$                                                       

‐$                                                       

Authorized Representative Approval

Total estimated cost for mission:

Other (Explain in comments):

SMAA Form B ‐ Section II



Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement Form B

Name

 Regular 

Salary 

Rate 

 Fringe 

Benefit 

Hourly 

Rate 

Regular 

Hours 

Per Day

 OT 

Hourly 

Rate 

OT 

Hours 

Worked 

Per 

Days 

 Total 

Daily Cost 

Number 

of 

Mission 

Days

Total Mission 

Cost

EXAMPLE:   

Sarah Smith
10.00$    0.70$       8 15.00$     4 145.60$      16 2,329.60$        

 $    27.00   $              ‐     $                     ‐   

 $              ‐     $                     ‐   

 $              ‐     $                     ‐   

 $              ‐     $                     ‐   

 $              ‐     $                     ‐   

 $              ‐     $                     ‐   

 $              ‐     $                     ‐   

 $              ‐     $                     ‐   

 $              ‐     $                     ‐   

 $              ‐     $                     ‐   

 $              ‐     $                     ‐   

 $              ‐     $                     ‐   

 $              ‐     $                     ‐   

 $              ‐     $                     ‐   

 $              ‐     $                     ‐   

 $              ‐     $                     ‐   

 $              ‐     $                     ‐   

 $              ‐     $                     ‐   

 $              ‐     $                     ‐   

 $              ‐     $                     ‐   

 $              ‐     $                     ‐   

 $              ‐     $                     ‐   

 $              ‐     $                     ‐   

 $              ‐     $                     ‐   

 $              ‐     $                     ‐   

‐$                Total Personnel Estimate:

Florida Division of Emergency Management

Section II ‐  Personnel Cost Estimate

SMAA Form B ‐ Section II ‐ Personnel



Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement Form B

Name  Breakfast   Lunch   Dinner 

 Daily 

Rate   Daily Total 

Total Mission 

Cost

EXAMPLE:   

Sarah Smith
6.00$      11.00$  19.00$     ‐$       $      36.00  576.00$           

$             ‐     $                    ‐   

$             ‐     $                    ‐   

$             ‐     $                    ‐   

$             ‐     $                    ‐   

$             ‐     $                    ‐   

$             ‐     $                    ‐   

$             ‐     $                    ‐   

$             ‐     $                    ‐   

$             ‐     $                    ‐   

$             ‐     $                    ‐   

$             ‐     $                    ‐   

$             ‐     $                    ‐   

$             ‐     $                    ‐   

$             ‐     $                    ‐   

$             ‐     $                    ‐   

$             ‐     $                    ‐   

$             ‐     $                    ‐   

$             ‐     $                    ‐   

$             ‐     $                    ‐   

$             ‐     $                    ‐   

$             ‐     $                    ‐   

$             ‐     $                    ‐   

$             ‐     $                    ‐   

$             ‐     $                    ‐   

$             ‐     $                    ‐   

‐$                 

Number of 

Mission Days

16 

Total Meals & Per Diem Estimate:

Florida Division of Emergency Management

Section II ‐  Travel Cost Estimate
Meals & Per Diem Estimate

 Personnel may claim Daily Rate OR Breakfast, Lunch & Dinner. Both cannot be claimed. If requesting 

party provides meals they are not eligible for reimbursement 

Lodging Estimate

SMAA Form B ‐ Section II ‐ Travel



Total 

2,100.00$          

‐$                    

‐$                   
‐$                   

‐$                    

‐$                    

‐$                     

Vehicle 

Mileage 

Rate

Estimated 

Mileage

 Daily 

Rental 

Rate 

 Number of 

Mission 

Dates 

Total

35.00$    16 760.00$             

‐$                

‐$                

‐$                

‐$                

‐$                

‐$                

‐$                

‐$                

‐$                

‐$                

‐$                

‐$                

‐$                

‐$                

‐$                 

‐$                     

‐$                     

1

Total Estimated Lodging:

14

Total Vehicle Estimate:

Total Estimated Travel:

Vehicle Type

EXAMPLE: Economy Rental

If requesting party provides lodging it is not eligible for reimbursement.

Either mileage OR receipts can be claimed; both are not eligible for reimbursement

Estimated 

Fuel

200.00$         

Vehicle Estimate

Accommodations  Nightly Rate  Number of Rooms
Number of 

Nights

EXAMPLE: Hotel  $                       150.00 

SMAA Form B ‐ Section II ‐ Travel



Equipment Type

FEMA 

Equipment 

Code #

Hours 

Per Day

Days Per 

Deployment

EXAMPLE: 6000 LB Forklift 8301 6 14

‐$          Total Equipment Estimate:

‐$                           

‐$                           

‐$                           

‐$                           

‐$                           

‐$                           

‐$                           

‐$                           

‐$                           

‐$                           

‐$                           

‐$                           

‐$                           

‐$                           

‐$                           

‐$                           

‐$                           

Florida Division of Emergency Management

Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement Form B

Section II ‐ Equipment

FEMA 

Equipment  

Rate 

‐$                           

 Total Mission Cost 

14.73$              1,237.32$                    

2019 FEMA Equipment rates are included at the end of this workbook. Equipment Rates include 

depreciation, overhead, all maintenance, field repairs, fuel, lubricants, and tires. Labor costs of 

operators are not included. 

‐$                           

‐$                           

‐$                           

‐$                           

‐$                           

‐$                           

‐$                           

SMAA Form B ‐ Section II ‐ Equipment



Item  Unit Price  Amount 

EXAMPLE: Sleeping Bag 35.00$        1

‐$             

‐$             Total Other Costs Estimate:

‐$                          

Total

‐$                          

Total Commodities Estimate:

Other Estimated Costs
Expense Reason for Purchase

EXAMPLE: Laundry Services Service not provided at base camp 25.00$                           

‐$                          

‐$                          

‐$                          

‐$                          

‐$                          

‐$                          

‐$                          

Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement Form B

Florida Division of Emergency Management

Section II ‐  Commodities & Other

35.00$                      

‐$                          

Commodities Estimate

 Total  Reason for Purchase 
bedding at base camp

SMAA Form B ‐ Section II ‐ Commodities Other



                 FEMA’s SCHEDULE OF EQUIPMENT RATES

                  DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

           FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY

                                   RECOVERY DIRECTORATE

                               PUBLIC ASSISTANCE DIVISION

                                    WASHINGTON, DC 20472

                                    The rates on this Schedule of Equipment Rates are for applicant

‐

owned equipment in good mechanical condition,

                                    complete with all required attachments. Each rate covers all costs eligible under the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief

                                    and Emergency Assistance Act, 42 U.S.C. § 5121, et seq., for ownership and operation of equipment, including

                                    depreciation, overhead, all maintenance, field repairs, fuel, lubricants, tires, OSHA equipment and other costs

                                     incidental to operation. Standby equipment costs are not eligible.

                                    Equipment must be in actual operation performing eligible work in order for reimbursement to be eligible. LABOR

                                    COSTS OF OPERATOR ARE NOT INCLUDED in the rates and should be approved separately from equipment costs.

                                     Information regarding the use of the Schedule is contained in 44 CFR § 206.228 Allowable Costs. Rates for equipment

                                     not listed will be furnished by FEMA upon request. Any appeals shall be in accordance with 44 CFR § 206.206 Appeals.

                                    THESE RATES ARE APPLICABLE TO MAJOR DISASTERS AND EMERGENCIES

                                                  DECLARED BY THE PRESIDENT ON OR AFTER August 15, 2019.

Cost 

Code Equipment Specifications Capacity or Size HP Notes Unit

 2019 

Updated 

Rate 

8010 Air Compressor Air Delivery 41 CFM to 10 Hoses included. hour 1.62$               

8011 Air Compressor Air Delivery 103 CFM to 30 Hoses included. hour 9.86$               

8012 Air Compressor Air Delivery 130 CFM to 50 Hoses included. hour 12.49$             

8013 Air Compressor Air Delivery 175 CFM to 90 Hoses included. hour 20.98$             

8014 Air Compressor Air Delivery 400 CFM to 145 Hoses included. hour 32.13$             

8015 Air Compressor Air Delivery 575 CFM to 230 Hoses included. hour 57.05$             

8016 Air Compressor Air Delivery 1100 CFM to 355 Hoses included. hour 95.60$             

8017 Air Compressor Air Delivery 1600 CFM to 500 Hoses included. hour 98.55$             

8040 Ambulance to 150 hour 28.09$             

8041 Ambulance to 210 hour 41.18$             

8050 Board, Arrow to 8 Trailer Mounted. hour 4.53$               

8051 Board, Message to 5 Trailer Mounted. hour 11.60$             

8060 Auger, Portable Hole Diameter 16 In to 6 hour 2.34$               

8061 Auger, Portable Hole Diameter 18 In to 13 hour 4.65$               

8062 Auger, Tractor Mntd Max. Auger Diameter 36 In to 13

Includes digger, boom and 

mounting hardware.  hour 3.25$               

8063 Auger, Truck Mntd Max. Auger Size 24 In to 100

Includes digger, boom and 

mounting hardware.  Add this 

rate to tractor rate for total 

auger and tractor rate. hour 34.93$             

8064 Hydraulic Post Driver hour 35.27$             

8065 Auger

Horizontal Directional Boring 

Machine  250 X 100 300 DD-140B YR-2003 hour 172.29$           

8066 Auger

Horizontal Directional Boring 

Machine 50 X 100 24 Average to 7,000 lbs hour 33.83$             

8067 Auger, Directional Boring Machine Auger, Directional Boring Machine 7,000 - 10,000 lbs 45 JT920L (2013) hour 41.04$             

8068 Bush Hog Bush Hog - Model 326 Single Spindle Rotary Cutters hour 20.61$             

8068-1 Bush Hog Bush Hog - Model 3210 Lift, Pull, Semi-Mount & Offset Model hour 28.74$             

8068-2 Bush Hog Bush Hog - Model 2815 Flex Wing Rotary Cutters hour 43.17$             

8070 Automobile to 130 Transporting people. mile 0.545$             

8071 Automobile to 130 Transporting cargo. hour 12.43$             

8072 Automobile, Police to 250 Patrolling. mile 0.545$             

8073 Automobile, Police to 250 Stationary with engine running. hour 16.05$             

8075 Motorcycle, Police mile 0.505$             

8076 Automibile - Chevy Trailblazer 6 or 8 cl  285 to 300 hour 23.99$             

8077 Automobile - Ford Expedition Fire Command Center EcoBoost V-6 360 2015 Model hour 19.62$             

8078 MRAP Armored Rescue Vehicle Search and Rescue Military Suplus Vehicle 375-450 Qualified foe operational rate onl Hr. 51.80$             

8079 MRAP C-MTV

Multi-Theater (Military 

Surplus)Vehicle gvwr 55000 Lbs to 350 Qualified foe operational rate onl Hr. 48.35$             

FEMA Code ID Equipment Description

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/EcoBoost


8080 All Terrain Vehicle (ATV) Engine 110cc, 4-Wheel; 20" tyre 6.5-7.5 hour 8.23$               

8081 All Terrain Vehicle (ATV) Engine 125cc, 4-Wheel; 21" tyre 7.6-8.6 hour 8.67$               

8082 All Terrain Vehicle (ATV) Engine 150cc, 4-Wheel; 22" tyre 9.0-10.0 hour 8.68$               

8083 All Terrain Vehicle (ATV)  Engine 200cc, 4-Wheel; 24" tyre 12-14.0 hour 9.23$               

8084 All Terrain Vehicle (ATV) Engine 250cc, 4-Wheel; 24" tyre 15-17 hour 9.81$               

8085 All Terrain Vehicle (ATV) Engine 300cc, 4-Wheel; 24" tyre 18-20 hour 10.66$             

8086 All Terrain Vehicle (ATV) Engine 400cc. 4-Wheel; 25" tyre 26-28 hour 12.20$             

8087 All Terrain Vehicle (ATV) Engine 450cc, 4-Wheel; 25" tyre 26-28 hour 13.07$             

8088 All Terrain Vehicle (ATV) Engine 650cc, 4-Wheel; 25" tyre 38-40 hour 13.86$             

8089 All Terrain Vehicle (ATV) Engine 750cc, 4-Wheel; 25" tyre 44-46 hour 14.79$             

8110 Barge, Deck Size 50'x35'x7.25' 0 Push by Tug-Boat hour 52.00$             

8111 Barge, Deck Size 50'x35'x9' 0 Push by Tug-Boat hour 61.96$             

8112 Barge, Deck Size 120'x45'x10' 0 Push by Tug-Boat hour 109.97$           

8113 Barge, Deck Size 160'x45'x11'' 0 Push by Tug-Boat hour 136.90$           

8120 Boat, Tow Size 55'x20'x5' to 870 Steel. hour 352.71$           

8121 Boat, Tow Size 60'x21'x5' to 1050 Steel. hour 400.32$           

8122 Boat, Tow Size 70'x30'x7.5' to 1350 Steel. hour 624.56$           

8123 Boat, Tow Size 120'x34'x8' to 2000 Steel. hour 1,181.86$        

8124 Airboat 815AGIS Airboat w/spray unit 15'x8' 400 hour 32.70$             

8125 Airboat 815AGIS Airboat w/spray unit 15'x8' 425 hour 33.06$             

8126 Swamp Buggy Conquest 360 hour 41.35$             

8130 Boat, Row 0 Heavy duty. hour 1.46$               

8131 Boat, Runabout Size 13'x5' to 50 Outboard. hour 12.55$             

8132 Boat, Tender Size 14'x7' to 100 Inboard with 360 degree drive. hour 16.58$             

8133 Boat, Push Size 45'x21'x6' to 435 Flat hull. hour 235.03$           

8134 Boat, Push Size 54'x21'x6' to 525 Flat hull. hour 290.74$           

8135 Boat, Push Size 58'x24'x7.5' to 705 Flat hull. hour 355.70$           

8136 Boat, Push Size 64'x25'x8' to 870 Flat hull. hour 359.36$           

8140 Boat, Tug Length 16 Ft to 100 hour 47.35$             

8141 Boat, Tug Length 18 Ft to 175 hour 70.55$             

8142 Boat, Tug Length 26 Ft to 250 hour 90.10$             

8143 Boat, Tug Length 40 Ft to 380 hour 215.09$           

8144 Boat, Tug Length 51 Ft to 700 hour 302.01$           

8145 Jet Ski 3-seater hour 27.70$             

8146 Jet Ski hour 8.60$               

8147 Boat, Inflatable Rescue Raft Zodiac 0 hour 1.13$               

8148 Boat, Runabout  1544 lbs 11 passenger capacity 190-250 hour 65.51$             

8149 Boat, removable engine 

2000 Johnson Outboard Motor w 15" 

shaft 15 hour 1.58$               

8151 Broom, Pavement Broom Length 96 In to 100 hour 30.41$             

8153 Broom, Pavement, Mntd Broom Length 72 In to 18

Add Prime Mover cost for total 

rate hour 6.24$               

8154 Broom, Pavement, Pull Broom Length 84 In to 20

Add Prime Mover cost for total 

rate hour 23.75$             

8155 Broom, Pavement Broom Length 72 In to 35 hour 25.28$             

8157 Sweeper, Pavement to 110 hour 78.79$             

8158 Sweeper, Pavement to 230 hour 102.03$           

8180 Bus to 150 hour 21.60$             

8181 Bus to 210 hour 25.82$             

8182 Bus to 300 hour 39.65$             

8183 Blower Gasoline powered Toro Pro Force 27 hour 15.40$             

8183x Mosquito Sprayer 2015 Adapco Guardian 95 ES 15-gal; 350 lbs hour 18.83$             

8184 Back-Pack Blower to 4.4 hour 1.53$               

8185 Walk-Behind Blower 13 hour 6.83$               

8187 Chainsaw Bar Length = 20 in 3.0 cu in 2.7 hour 1.91$               

8188 Chainsaw Bar Length = 20 in 5.0 cu in hour 2.59$               

8189 Chainsaw Bar Length = 20 in 6.0 cu in 3.4 hour 2.77$               



8190 Chain Saw Bar Length = 16 in 2.5 cu in 2.4 hour 1.80$               

8191 Chain Saw (STIHL) Bar Length = 25 in 7.5 cu in 3.62 hour 3.73$               

8192 Chain Saw, Pole Bar Length = 18 in 4.0 cu in 3.2 hour 2.10$               

8193 Skidder model 748 E to 173 hour 56.25$             

8194 Skidder model 648 G11 to 177 hour 105.44$           

8195 Cutter, Brush Cutter Size 8 ft to 150 hour 119.52$           

8196 Cutter, Brush Cutter Size 8 ft to 190 hour 134.74$           

8197 Cutter, Brush Cutter Size 10 ft to 245 hour 142.31$           

8198 Bruncher Cutter

Cutter, Brush - 247 hp, 1997 Model 

511 Feller to 247 hour 193.95$           

8199 Log Trailer 40 ft 0 hour 10.15$             

8200 Chipper, Brush Chipping Capacity 6 In to 35 Trailer Mounted. hour 8.97$               

8201 Chipper, Brush Chipping Capacity 9 In to 65 Trailer Mounted. hour 17.06$             

8202 Chipper, Brush Chipping Capacity 12 In to 100 Trailer Mounted. hour 24.89$             

8203 Chipper, Brush Chipping Capacity 15 In to 125 Trailer Mounted. hour 35.75$             

8204 Chipper, Brush Chipping Capacity 18 In to 200 Trailer Mounted. hour 50.41$             

8208 Loader - Tractor -  Knuckleboom model Barko 595 ML to 173 hour 169.74$           

8209 Loader - Wheel model 210 w/ Buck Saw 50 inch Bar to 240 hour 98.48$             

8210 Clamshell & Dragline, Crawler 149,999 lbs to 235 Bucket not included in rate. hour 134.68$           

8211 Clamshell & Dragline, Crawler 250,000 lbs to 520 Bucket not included in rate. hour 178.82$           

8212 Clamshell & Dragline, Truck to 240 Bucket not included in rate. hour 147.05$           

8218 BOMAG Compactor BW100AD-3 33 Hour 24.80$             

8219 Compactor -2-Ton Pavement Roller Single Drum Vibratoty Compactor to 2.9 Ton 28 hour 28.72$             

8220 Compactor to 10 hour 15.92$             

8221 Compactor, towed, Vibratory Drum to 45 Plus tow Truck hour 33.56$             

8222 Compactor, Vibratory, Drum to 75 hour 24.09$             

8223 Compactor, pneumatic, wheel to 100 hour 26.90$             

8225 Compactor, Sanitation to 300 hour 96.11$             

8226 Compactor, Sanitation to 400 hour 154.63$           

8227 Compactor, Sanitation 535 hour 264.25$           

8228 Compactor, towed, Pneumatic, Wheel Hercules PT-11, 10,000 lbs 11-Wheels (Towed) hour 18.48$             

8229

Compactor,Towed Steel Drum Static 

Compactor GTD-54120 20,000 lbs Grid Drum (Towed) hour 16.22$             

8240 Feeder, Grizzly to 35 hour 25.47$             

8241 Feeder, Grizzly to 55 hour 33.55$             

8242 Feeder, Grizzly to 75 hour 65.18$             

8250 Dozer, Crawler Deere 450J LT to 75 hour 54.20$             

8251 Dozer, Crawler Deere 650K LGP; ROPS/FOPS to 105 hour 65.14$             

8252 Dozer, Crawler to 160 hour 98.77$             

8253 Dozer, Crawler to 250 hour 153.35$           

8254 Dozer, Crawler to 360 hour 218.47$           

8255 Dozer, Crawler

Make/Model: CAT D10T (disc. 2014);  
Protection: EROPS; Type Semi-U to 574 hour 317.49$           

8256 Dozer, Crawler to 850 hour 358.48$           

8260 Dozer, Wheel to 300 hour 66.26$             

8261 Dozer, Wheel to 400 hour 101.22$           

8262 Dozer, Wheel to 500 hour 184.08$           

8263 Dozer, Wheel to 625 hour 239.31$           

8269 Box Scraper 3 hitch attach for tractor; 2007 Befco 0 hour 3.65$               

8270 Bucket, Clamshell Capacity 1.0 CY 0

Includes teeth. Does not include 

Clamshell & Dragline hour 4.64$               

8271 Bucket, Clamshell Capacity 2.5 CY 0

Includes teeth. Does not include 

Clamshell & Dragline hour 8.81$               

8272 Bucket, Clamshell Capacity 5.0 CY 0

Includes teeth. Does not include 

Clamshell & Dragline hour 13.19$             

8273 Bucket, Clamshell Capacity 7.5 CY 0

Includes teeth. Does not include 

Clamshell & Dragline hour 23.31$             

8275 Bucket, Dragline Capacity 2.0 CY 0

Does not include Clamshell & 

Dragline hour 3.98$               

8276 Bucket, Dragline Capacity 5.0 CY 0

Does not include Clamshell & 

Dragline hour 9.93$               



8277 Bucket, Dragline Capacity 10 CY 0

Does not include Clamshell & 

Dragline hour 14.19$             

8278 Bucket, Dragline Capacity 14 CY 0

Does not include Clamshell & 

Dragline hour 18.72$             

8280 Excavator, Hydraulic Bucket Capacity 0.5 CY to 45

Crawler, Truck & Wheel. 

Includes bucket. hour 18.97$             

8281 Excavator, Hydraulic Bucket Capacity 1.0 CY to 90

Crawler, Truck & Wheel. 

Includes bucket. hour 36.06$             

8282 Excavator, Hydraulic Bucket Capacity 1.5 CY to 160

Crawler, Truck & Wheel. 

Includes bucket. hour 55.30$             

8283 Excavator, Hydraulic Bucket Capacity 2.5 CY to 265

Crawler, Truck & Wheel. 

Includes bucket. hour 158.86$           

8284 Excavator, Hydraulic Bucket Capacity 4.5 CY to 420

Crawler, Truck & Wheel. 

Includes bucket. hour 264.64$           

8285 Excavator, Hydraulic Bucket Capacity 7.5 CY to 650

Crawler, Truck & Wheel. 

Includes bucket. hour 304.91$           

8286 Excavator, Hydraulic Bucket Capacity 12 CY to 1000

Crawler, Truck & Wheel. 

Includes bucket. hour 466.41$           

8287 Excavator 2007 model Gradall XL3100 III 184 hour 102.62$           

8288 Excavator 2003 model Gradall XL4100 III 238 hour 117.66$           

8289 Excavator 2006 model Gradall XL5100 230 hour 109.03$           

8290 Trowel, Concrete Diameter 48 In to 12 hour 4.94$               

8300 Fork Lift Capacity 6000 Lbs to 60 hour 14.73$             

8301 Fork Lift Capacity 12000 Lbs to 90 hour 21.12$             

8302 Fork Lift Capacity 18000 Lbs to 140 hour 28.79$             

8303 Fork Lift Capacity 50000 Lbs to 215 hour 63.25$             

8306 Fork Lift  Material handler  Diesel, CAT TH360B  6600-11500 gvwr lbs 94.9 3.1- 3.5 Mton hour 44.62$             

8307 Fork Lift Material handler Diesel, CAT TH460B 9000 Lbs 94.9 4.5 - 4.9 Mton hour 51.93$             

8308 Fork Lift Material handler  Diesel, CAT TH560B 10000 Lbs 117.5 4.5 - 4.9 Mton hour 56.14$             

8309 Fork Lift Accessory  2003 ACS Paddle Fork 0 hour 3.53$               

8310 Generator Prime Output 5.5 KW to 10 hour 5.36$               

8311 Generator Prime Output 16 KW to 25 hour 7.81$               

8312 Generator Prime Output 60KW to 88 hour 25.56$             

8313 Generator Prime Output 100 KW to 125 hour 43.60$             

8314 Generator Prime Output 150 KW to 240 hour 62.83$             

8315 Generator Prime Output 210 KW to 300 hour 85.70$             

8316 Generator Prime Output 280 KW to 400 hour 103.34$           

8317 Generator Prime Output 350 KW to 500 hour 114.23$           

8318 Generator Prime Output 530 KW to 750 hour 202.00$           

8319 Generator Prime Output 710 KW to 1000 hour 225.34$           

8327 Generator Prime Output 800 KW 1065 hour 232.46$           

8328 Generator Prime Output 900 KW 1355 hour 295.15$           

8329 Generator Prime Output 1000 KW 1000 Open hour 356.94$           

8320 Generator Prime Output 1100 KW 1645 Open hour 393.43$           

8321 Generator Prime Output 2500 KW to 3000 hour 553.78$           

8322 Generator Prime Output 1,000 KW to 1645 Enclosed hour 450.78$           

8323 Generator Prime Output 1,500 KW to 2500 Enclosed hour 583.01$           

8324 Generator Prime Output 1100KW 2500 Enclosed hour 567.48$           

8325 Generator  Prime Output 40KW 63 Open hour 23.16$             

8326 Generator Prime Output 20KW 35 Open/Closeed hour 18.05$             

8327  Generator Large Prime Output 80 KW 120 Hr. 31.65$             

8328 Generator Heavy Duty Prime Output 2000KW Open Hr. 490.00$           

8330 Graders Moldboard Size 10 Ft to 110

Includes Rigid and Articulate 

equipment. hour 43.98$             

8331 Graders Moldboard Size 12 Ft to 150

Includes Rigid and Articulate 

equipment. hour 63.63$             

8332 Graders Moldboard Size 14 Ft to 225

Includes Rigid and Articulate 

equipment. hour 80.43$             

8350 Hose, Discharge Diameter 3 In 0

Per 25 foot length. Includes 

couplings. hour 0.16$               

8351 Hose, Discharge Diameter 4 In 0

Per 25 foot length. Includes 

couplings. hour 0.24$               

8352 Hose, Discharge Diameter 6 In 0

Per 25 foot length. Includes 

couplings. hour 0.62$               

8353 Hose, Discharge Diameter 8 In 0

Per 25 foot length. Includes 

couplings. hour 0.62$               



8354 Hose, Discharge Diameter 12 In 0

Per 25 foot length. Includes 

couplings. hour 0.92$               

8355 Hose, Discharge Diameter 16 In 0

Per 25 foot length. Includes 

couplings. hour 1.71$               

8356 Hose, Suction Diameter 3 In 0

Per 25 foot length. Includes 

couplings. hour 0.31$               

8357 Hose, Suction Diameter 4 In 0

Per 25 foot length. Includes 

couplings. hour 0.37$               

8358 Hose, Suction Diameter 6 In 0

Per 25 foot length. Includes 

couplings. hour 1.17$               

8359 Hose, Suction Diameter 8 In 0

Per 25 foot length. Includes 

couplings. hour 1.11$               

8360 Hose, Suction Diameter 12 In 0

Per 25 foot length. Includes 

couplings. hour 1.73$               

8361 Hose, Suction Diameter 16 In 0

Per 25 foot length. Includes 

couplings. hour 3.29$               

8380 Loader, Crawler Bucket Capacity 0.5 CY to 32 Includes bucket. hour 19.59$             

8381 Loader, Crawler Bucket Capacity 1 CY to 60 Includes bucket. hour 36.87$             

8382 Loader, Crawler Bucket Capacity 2 CY to 118 Includes bucket. hour 69.24$             

8383 Loader, Crawler Bucket Capacity 3 CY to 178 Includes bucket. hour 103.22$           

8384 Loader, Crawler Bucket Capacity 4 CY to 238 Includes bucket. hour 123.73$           

8390 Loader, Wheel Bucket Capacity 0.5 CY to 38 hour 20.80$             

8391 Loader, Wheel Bucket Capacity 1 CY to 60 hour 41.33$             

8392 Loader, Wheel Bucket Capacity 2 CY to 105 CAT-926 hour 38.10$             

8393 Loader, Wheel Bucket Capacity 3 CY to 152 hour 46.17$             

8394 Loader, Wheel Bucket Capacity 4 CY 232 hour 76.27$             

8395 Loader, Wheel Bucket Capacity 5 CY 255 hour 79.50$             

8396 Loader, Wheel Bucket Capacity 6 CY to 305 hour 116.12$           

8397 Loader, Wheel Bucket Capacity 7 CY to 360 hour 129.40$           

8398 Loader, Wheel Bucket Capacity 8 CY to 530 hour 188.87$           

8401 Loader, Tractor, Wheel Bucket Capacity 0.87 CY to 80 Case 580 Super L hour 37.13$             

8410 Mixer, Concrete Portable Batching Capacity 10 Cft 8 Diesel Powered hour 3.13$               

8411 Mixer, Concrete Portable Batching Capacity 12 Cft 11 Gasoline Powered hour 4.31$               

8412 Mixer, Concrete, Trailer Mntd Batching Capacity 11 Cft to 10 hour 15.32$             

8413 Mixer, Concrete, Trailer Mntd Batching Capacity 16 Cft to 25 hour 20.47$             

8414 Truck, Concrete Mixer Mixer Capacity 13 CY to 300 hour 84.71$             

8419 Hand-Held, Pavement Breakers Weight 25~90 Lbs 0 Air Tool/Electric Power hour 1.12$               

8420 Self-Propelled Pavement Breaker, to 70-80 Self-Propelled (Diesel) hour 59.54$             

8421 Vibrator, Concrete Hand Held to 4 hour 1.63$               

8423 Spreader, Chip Spread Hopper Width 12.5 Ft to 152 hour 90.67$             

8424 Spreader, Chip Spread Hopper Width 16.5 Ft to 215 hour 125.19$           

8425 Spreader, Chip, Mntd Hopper Size 8 Ft to 8 Trailer & truck mounted. hour 4.77$               

8430 Paver, Asphalt, Towed 0 Does not include Prime Mover. hour 12.67$             

8431 Paver, Asphalt Crawler to 50

Includes wheel and crawler 

equipment. hour 76.41$             

8432 Paver, Asphalt Crawler to 125

Includes wheel and crawler 

equipment. hour 96.52$             

8433 Paver, Asphalt Crawler to 175

Includes wheel and crawler 

equipment. hour 144.69$           

8434 Paver, Asphalt 35,000Lbs & Over to 250

Includes wheel and crawler 

equipment. hour 224.01$           

8436 Pick-up, Asphalt to 110 hour 98.06$             

8437 Pick-up, Asphalt Cederapids CR MS-2 113 to 140 Asphalt-Pick-up Machine hour 140.59$           

8438 Pick-up, Asphalt Blaw-Knox MC-330 184 to 200 Asphalt-Pick-up Machine hour 189.75$           

8439 Pick-up, Asphalt MTV 1000C to 275 Asphalt-Pick-up Machine hour 214.03$           

8440 Striper Paint Capacity 40 Gal to 22 hour 16.92$             

8441 Striper Paint Capacity 90 Gal to 60 hour 24.24$             

8442 Striper Paint Capacity 120 Gal to 122 hour 45.28$             

8445 Striper, Truck Mntd Paint Capacity 120 Gal to 460 hour 83.35$             

8446 Striper, Walk-behind Paint Capacity 12 Gal 5 hour 4.23$               

8447 Paver accessory -Belt Extension

2002 Leeboy Conveyor Belt 

Extension 24' X 50' 0 crawler hour 33.48$             

8450 Plow, Snow, Grader Mntd Width to 10 Ft 0 Include Grader for total cost hour 28.28$             

8451 Plow, Snow, Grader Mntd Width to 14 Ft 0 Include Grader for total cost hour 33.21$             



8452 Plow, Truck Mntd Width to 15 Ft 0 Include truck for total cost hour 25.23$             

8453 Plow, Truck Mntd Width to 15 Ft 0

With leveling wing. Include 

truck for total cost hour 41.04$             

8455 Spreader, Sand Mounting Tailgate, Chassis 0 Truck not included hour 8.24$               

8456 Spreader, Sand Mounting Dump Body 0 Truck not included hour 10.55$             

8457 Spreader, Sand Mounting Truck (10yd) 0 Truck not included hour 13.41$             

8458 Spreader, Chemical Capacity 5 CY to 4 Trailer & truck mounted. hour 6.30$               

8469 Pump -  Trash Pump 10 MTC 2" Pump to 7 10,000 gph hour 7.87$               

8470 Pump Centrifugal, 8M pump 2" - 10,000 gal/hr. to 4.5 Hoses not included. hour 6.31$               

8471 Pump Diaphragm pump 2" - 3,000 gal/hr. to 6 Hoses not included. hour 6.98$               

8472 Pump Centrifugal, 18M pump 3" - 18,000 gal/hr. pump to 10 Hoses not included. hour 8.05$               

8473 Pump to 15 Hoses not included. hour 12.08$             

8474 Pump to 25 Hoses not included. hour 13.77$             

8475 Pump to 40 Hoses not included. hour 16.98$             

8476 Pump 4" - 40,000 gal/hr. 4" - 40,000 gal/hr. to 60 Hoses not included. hour 27.45$             

8477 Pump to 95 Hoses not included. hour 32.77$             

8478 Pump to 140 Hoses not included. hour 41.84$             

8479 Pump to 200 Hoses not included. hour 50.79$             

8480 Pump to 275 Does not include Hoses. hour 68.33$             

8481 Pump to 350 Does not include Hoses. hour 81.66$             

8482 Pump to 425 Does not include Hoses. hour 99.01$             

8483 Pump to 500 Does not include Hoses. hour 117.21$           

8484 Pump to 575 Does not include Hoses. hour 136.53$           

8485 Pump to 650 Does not include Hoses. hour 154.88$           

8486 Aerial Lift, Truck Mntd Max. Platform Height 40 Ft

    

Add this rate to truck rate for 

total lift and truck rate hour 11.63$             

8487 Aerial Lift, Truck Mntd Max. Platform Height 61 Ft

    

Add this rate to truck rate for 

total lift and truck rate hour 21.99$             

8488 Aerial Lift, Truck Mntd Max. Platform Height 80 Ft

    

Add this rate to truck rate for 

total lift and truck rate hour 39.80$             

8489 Aerial Lift, Truck Mntd Max. Platform Load - 600Lbs 81 Ft -100 Ft. Ht.

Articulated and Telescoping.  

Add this rate to truck rate for 

total lift and truck rate hour 42.16$             

8490 Aerial Lift, Self-Propelled Max. Platform Height 37 Ft. Ht. to 15

Articulated, Telescoping, 

Scissor. hour 9.02$               

8491 Aerial Lift, Self-Propelled Max. Platform Height 60 Ft. Ht. to 30

Articulated, Telescoping, 

Scissor. hour 17.39$             

8492 Aerial Lift, Self-Propelled Max. Platform Height 70 Ft. Ht. to 50

Articulated, Telescoping, 

Scissor. hour 31.57$             

8493 Aerial Lift, Self-Propelled Max. Platform Height 125 Ft. Ht. to 85 Articulated and Telescoping. hour 56.70$             

8494 Aerial Lift, Self-Propelled Max. Platform Height 150 Ft. Ht. to 130 Articulated and Telescoping. hour 73.90$             

8495 I.C. Aerial Lift, Self-Propelled Max. Platform Load - 500 Lbs 75"x155", 40Ft Ht. to 80 2000 Lbs Capacity hour 29.71$             

8496 Crane, Truck Mntd Max. Lift Capacity 24000 Lbs 0 Include truck rate for total cost hour 16.54$             

8497 Crane, Truck Mntd Max. Lift Capacity 36000 Lbs 0 Include truck rate for total cost hour 23.17$             

8498 Crane, Truck Mntd Max. Lift Capacity 60000 Lbs 0 Include truck rate for total cost hour 37.46$             

8499 Pump - Trash-Pump CPB Rating - 10MTC 10000 gal/Hr 7 Self- Priming Trash Pump hour 7.76$               

8500 Crane Max. Lift Capacity 8 MT to 80 hour 40.75$             

8501 Crane Max. Lift Capacity 15 MT to 150 hour 67.83$             

8502 Crane Max. Lift Capacity 50 MT to 200 hour 93.95$             

8503 Crane Max. Lift Capacity 70 MT to 300 hour 180.23$           

8504 Crane Max. Lift Capacity 110 MT to 350 hour 258.23$           

8510 Saw, Concrete Blade Diameter 14 In to 14 hour 7.62$               

8511 Saw, Concrete Blade Diameter 26 In to 35 hour 12.47$             

8512 Saw, Concrete Blade Diameter 48 In to 65 hour 26.81$             

8513 Saw, Rock Blade Diameter to 100 hour 35.13$             

8514 Saw, Rock Blade Diameter to 200 hour 68.85$             

8517 Jackhammer (Dry) Weight Class 25-45 Lbs 0 Pneumatic Powered hour 1.77$               

8518 Jackhammer (Wet) Weight Class 30-55 Lbs 0 Pneumatic Powered hour 2.02$               

8521 Scraper Scraper Capacity 15 CY to 262 hour 133.80$           

8522 Scraper Scraper Capacity 22 CY to 365 hour 174.30$           

8523 Scraper Scraper Capacity 34 CY to 500 hour 322.77$           



8524 Scraper Scraper Capacity 44 CY to 604 hour 354.84$           

8540 Loader, Skid-Steer Operating Capacity 976 - 1250 Lbs to 36 hour 26.83$             

8541 Loader, Skid-Steer Operating Capacity 1751 - 2200 Lbs to 66 hour 35.47$             

8542 Loader, Skid-Steer Operating Capacity 2901 to 3300 Lbs to 81 hour 38.72$             

8550 Snow Blower, Truck Mntd Capacity 600 Tph to 75 Does not include truck hour 35.39$             

8551 Snow Blower, Truck Mntd Capacity 1400 Tph to 200 Does not include truck hour 94.72$             

8552 Snow Blower, Truck Mntd Capacity 2000 Tph to 340 Does not include truck hour 143.88$           

8553 Snow Blower, Truck Mntd Capacity 2500 Tph to 400 Does not include truck hour 156.93$           

8558 Snow Thrower, Walk Behind Cutting Width 25 in to 5 hour 2.97$               

8559 Snow Thrower, Walk Behind Cutting Width 60 in to 15 hour 14.47$             

8560 Snow Blower Capacity 2,000 Tph to 400 hour 234.49$           

8561 Snow Blower Capacity 2,500 Tph to 500 hour 256.20$           

8562 Snow Blower Capacity 3,500 Tph to 600 hour 285.56$           

8563 The Vammas 4500 Snow Remover 26ft Plow, 20ft Broom + Airblast 428 Equip with Plow & Broom hour 260.00$           

8564 The Vammas 5500 RM300 96"W x 20"D 350 Soil Stabilization, Reclaimer hour 212.00$           

8565 Oshkosh Pavement Sweeper H-Series 420 Equip with Broom hour 229.00$           

8569 Dust Control De-Ice Unit 1300-2000 gal 173"Lx98"Wx51"H 5.5 Hydro Pump w/100' 1/2" hose hour 3.54$               

8570 Loader-Backhoe, Wheel Loader Bucket Capacity 0.5 CY to 40

Loader and Backhoe Buckets 

included. hour 23.95$             

8571 Loader-Backhoe, Wheel Loader Bucket Capacity 1 CY to 70

Loader and Backhoe Buckets 

included. hour 33.36$             

8572 Loader-Backhoe, Wheel Loader Bucket Capacity 1.5 CY to 95

Loader and Backhoe Buckets 

included. hour 43.46$             

8573 Loader-Backhoe, Wheel Loader Bucket Capacity 1.75 CY to 115

Loader and Backhoe Buckets 

included. hour 49.55$             

8580 Distributor,  Asphalt Tank Capacity Mounted on Trailer 550 Gal 16

   

burners, insulated tank, and 

circulating spray bar. hour 14.97$             

8581 Distributor,  Asphalt Tank Capacity Mounted on Trailer 1000 Gal 38

Truck Mounted. Includes 

burners, insulated tank, and 

circulating spray bar.  Include 

truck rate. hour 22.45$             

8582 Distributor,  Asphalt Tank Capacity Mounted on Truck 4000 Gal

Truck Mounted. Includes 

burners, insulated tank, and 

circulating spray bar.  Include 

truck rate. hour 32.52$             

8583 Distributor

ETNYRE Oil Distributor Model - 

PB348 300 hour 43.57$             

8584 Distributor  ETNYRE Quad Chip Spreader 280 hour 90.67$             

8590 Trailer, Dump Capacity 20 CY 0 Does not include Prime Mover. hour 13.13$             

8591 Trailer, Dump Capacity 30 CY 0 Does not include Prime Mover. hour 13.37$             

8600 Trailer, Equipment Capacity 30 Tons 0 hour 16.71$             

8601 Trailer, Equipment Capacity 40 Tons 0 hour 18.49$             

8602 Trailer, Equipment Capacity 60 Tons 0 hour 19.30$             

8603 Trailer, Equipment Capacity 120 Tons 0 hour 30.52$             

8610 Trailer, Water Tank Capacity 4000 Gal 0

Includes a centrifugal pump with 

sump and a rear spraybar. hour 15.85$             

8611 Trailer, Water Tank Capacity 6000 Gal 0

Includes a centrifugal pump with 

sump and a rear spraybar. hour 19.49$             

8612 Trailer, Water Tank Capacity 10000 Gal 0

Includes a centrifugal pump with 

sump and a rear spraybar. hour 22.76$             

8613 Trailer, Water Tank Capacity 14000 Gal 0

Includes a centrifugal pump with 

sump and a rear spraybar. hour 28.39$             

8614 Truck- Water Tanker  1000 gal. tank 175 hour 35.84$             

8620 Tub Grinder to 440 hour 98.30$             

8621 Tub Grinder to 630 hour 148.62$           

8622 Tub Grinder to 760 hour 189.56$           

8623 Tub Grinder to 1000 hour 332.79$           

8627 Horizontal Grinder  Model HG6000 630 hour 59.12$             

8628 Stump Grinder 1988 Vermeer SC-112 102 hour 48.59$             

8629 Stump Grinder 24" grinding wheel 110 hour 46.31$             

8630 Sprayer, Seed Working Capacity 750 Gal to 30

Trailer & truck mounted.  Does 

not include Prime Mover. hour 14.78$             

8631 Sprayer, Seed Working Capacity 1250 Gal to 50

Trailer & truck mounted.  Does 

not include Prime Mover. hour 19.74$             

8632 Sprayer, Seed Working Capacity 3500 Gal to 115

Trailer & truck mounted.  Does 

not include Prime Mover. hour 32.52$             

8633 Mulcher, Trailer Mntd Working Capacity 7 TPH to 35 hour 15.59$             



8634 Mulcher, Trailer Mntd Working Capacity 10 TPH to 55 hour 23.12$             

8635 Mulcher, Trailer Mntd Working Capacity 20 TPH to 120 hour 33.58$             

8636 Scraper  Soil Recycler WR 2400 w 317 gal fuel tank 563 hour 265.76$           

8637 Trailer CAT Double Belly Bottom-dump Trailer 26 CY of soil in one dump 330 13 CY  of soil each berry hour 95.10$             

8638 Rake

 Barber Beach Sand Rake 600HDr, 

towed 0 Towed by Beach vehicle hour 15.78$             

8639 Chipper    

Wildcat 626 Cougar Trommel Screen 

chipper w belt 125 hour 35.38$             

8640 Trailer, Office Trailer Size 8' x 24' 0 Cargo Size 16ft hour 2.31$               

8641 Trailer, Office Trailer Size 8' x 32' 0 Cargo Size 24ft hour 2.76$               

8642 Trailer, Office Trailer Size 10' x 32' 0 Cargo Size 20ft hour 3.69$               

8643 Trailer  Haz-Mat Equipment trailer    8'x18' 0 Move by Tractor to Location hour 38.88$             

8644 Trailer, Covered Utility Trailer (7’ X  16’) 0 Move by Tractor to Location hour 5.88$               

8645 Trailer, Dodge Ram  8' x 24' shower trailer- 12 showers 101 hour 30.33$             

8646 Trailer, Dodge 8' x 32’ flatbed water 25,000 MGVW 200 4x2-Axle hour 28.60$             

8650 Trencher to 40

Walk-behind, Crawler & Wheel 

Mounted. Chain and Wheel. hour 16.91$             

8651 Trencher to 85

Walk-behind, Crawler & Wheel 

Mounted. Chain and Wheel. hour 29.53$             

8654 Trencher accessories 2008 Griswold Trenchbox 0 hour 1.96$               

8660 Plow, Cable Plow Depth 24 in to 30 hour 13.77$             

8661 Plow, Cable Plow Depth 36 in to 65 hour 40.07$             

8662 Plow, Cable Plow Depth 48 in to 110 hour 44.60$             

8670 Derrick, Hydraulic Digger

Max. Boom = 60 Ft, 12,000 Ft-Lb 

Hydraulic Lift Capacity 15,500 Lbs 275

Includes hydraulic pole 

alignment attachment.  Include 

truck rate hour 35.07$             

8671 Derrick, Hydraulic Digger

Max. Boom = 90 Ft, 14000 Ft-Lb 

Hydraulic Lift Capacity 26,700 Lbs 310

Includes hydraulic pole 

alignment attachment.  Include 

truck rate hour 56.12$             

8672 Movax SP-60 28-32 ton Head 134KW 178

Sonic Sidegrip Vibratory Pile 

Driver Hour 109.20$           

8680

Truck, Fire -Industrial -112Ft Ladder 

Aerial Platform Pump/Tank Capacity 3000gpm/1000 gal Water or Foam 600

2-1000gpm Nozzles 1-Each 

side of Platform Hour 198.30$           

8681 Truck, Fire, Engine Type-1 Pump/Tank Capacity 1000GPM/300gal Engine, with Pump & Roll hour 140.00$           

8682 Truck, Fire, Engine Type-2 Pump/Tank Capacity 500GPM/300gal Engine, with Pump & Roll hour 132.00$           

8683 Truck, Fire, Ladder(48ft)(Type-III) Pump/Tank Capacity 150gpm/500gal, 115-149  Hose 1-1/2"D 500' Long hour 119.30$           

8684

Truck, Fire, Aerial (Cummins 

IXL9)100Ft Ladder Pump/Tank Capacity 2000gpm/500gal 450 1500gpm Monitor/nozzle hour 178.00$           

8685 Truck, Fire, Ladder(48ft)(Type-I) Pump/Tank Capacity

1000gpm/400gal, 500gpm Master 

Stream 200-250  Hose 2-1/2"D 1200' Long hour 154.00$           

8686 Truck, Fire, Ladder(48ft)(Type-II) Pump/Tank Capacity 500gpm/300gal, 100-199  Hose 2-1/2"D 1000' Long hour 131.50$           

8687 Truck, Fire, Support Water Tender S1 Pump/Tank Capacity 300GPM/4000+gal 115-149 S1 Water Tender hour 114.50$           

8688 Truck, Fire, Support Water Tender S2 Pump/Tank Capacity 200GPM/2500+gal S2 Water Tender hour 103.50$           

8689 Truck, Fire, Support Water Tender S3 Pump/Tank Capacity 200GPM/1000+gal S3 Water Tender hour 79.00$             

8690 Truck, Fire - Water Tender Pump Capacity 1000 GPM @150 psi hour 70.33$             

8691 Truck, Fire, Tanker Pump/Tank Capacity 1250 GPM/2500 gal 500 hour 74.57$             

8692 Truck, Fire, Pumper Pump/Tank Capacity 1500 GPM/1000 gal 500 hour 81.10$             

8693 Truck, Fire, Pumper Pump Capacity 2000 GPM hour 84.04$             

8694 Truck, Fire Aerial Ladder (75Ft) Pump/Tank Capacity 1500GPM/600 gal 475 hour 121.00$           

8695 Truck, Fire Aerial Ladder (150Ft) Ladder length 150 FT No Platform, hour 146.43$           

8696 Truck, Fire (Rescure) No Ladder 330 Rescure Equipment hour 96.36$             

8697 Truck, Fire, Tactical Water Tender T1 Pump/Tank Capacity 250GPM/2000+gal 175 hour 119.50$           

8698 Truck, Fire, Tactical Water Tender T2 Pump/Tank Capacity 250GPM/1000+gal hour 102.67$           

8699 Truck, Fire, Engine Type-3 Pump/Tank Capacity 150GPM/500gal Engine, with Pump & Roll hour 126.50$           

8700 Truck, Flatbed Maximum Gvw 15000 Lbs to 200 Diesel Engine hour 25.46$             

8701 Truck, Flatbed Maximum Gvw 25000 Lbs to 275 Gasoline Engine hour 40.36$             

8701-1 Truck, Flatbed Maximum Gvw 25000 Lbs 200 Diesel Engine hour 28.55$             

8702 Truck, Flatbed Maximum Gvw 30000 Lbs 217 Diesel Engine hour 32.90$             

8703 Truck, Flatbed Maximum Gvw 45000 Lbs to 380 Diesel Engine hour 52.73$             

8708 Trailer, semi 48ft to 53ft, flat-bed, freight, two axle 50,000+ gvwr 0 hour 8.67$               

8709 Trailer, semi enclosed 48 ft to 53 ft, two axles 50,000+ gvwr 0 Enclosed hour 9.82$               

8710 Trailer, semi  28ft, single axle, freight 25,000 gvwr 0 hour 10.01$             



8711 Flat bed utility trailer 6 ton 0 hour 3.21$               

8712 Cleaner, Sewer/Catch Basin Hopper Capacity 5 CY 50 Truck Mounted. (350 gal) hour 25.51$             

8713 Cleaner, Sewer/Catch Basin Hopper Capacity 14 CY 60 Truck Mounted. (1500 Gal) hour 32.02$             

8714 Vactor-Combined Sewer Cleaning 800 Gal Spoils/400 Gal Water 500/800 gal 190 with water & waste Tanks hour 85.10$             

8714-1 Vector Combine Vaccum Truck 1500 gal Water 15 Cu Yd 330 with water & waste Tanks hour 86.94$             

8715 Truck, Hydro Vac model LP555DT 36 - Hp pump 36 Towed by tractor hour 18.50$             

8716 Leaf Vac  Tow by Truck 22,000 cfm capacity 85 Leaf Vac + Truck Code 8811 hour 52.93$             

8717 Truck, Vacuum  60,000 GVW 400 hour 76.72$             

8719 Litter Picker model 2007 Barber 0 Towed by tractor hour 9.60$               

8720 Truck, Dump Struck Capacity 8 CY to 220 hour 57.70$             

8721 Truck, Dump Struck Capacity 10 CY to 320 hour 72.05$             

8722 Truck, Dump Struck Capacity 12 CY to 400 hour 79.62$             

8723 Truck, Dump Struck Capacity 14 CY to 400 hour 77.50$             

8724 Truck, Dump, Off Highway Struck Capacity 28 CY to 450 hour 136.57$           

8725 Truck, Dump Struck Capacity 18 CY to 400 hour 91.65$             

8730 Truck, Garbage Capacity 25 CY to 255 hour 49.79$             

8731 Truck, Garbage Capacity 32 CY to 325 hour 57.06$             

8733 E-BAM Services

Environmental Beta Attenuation Air 

Monitor 0 Powered by Solar System hour 3.07$               

8734 Attenuator, safety  that can stop a vehicle at 60 mph 0 hour 5.64$               

8735 Truck, Attenuator  2004 Truck Mounted for 60 mph 0 hour 3.89$               

8736 Truck, tow 1987 Chevy Kodiak 70 175 hour 28.73$             

8744 Van, Custom Special Service Canteen Truck 350 hour 18.35$             

8745 Van, step   model MT10FD  300 hour 22.05$             

8746 Van-up to 15 passenger  light duty, class 1 225-300 hour 20.48$             

8747 Van-up to 15 passenger   light duty, class 2 225-300 hour 20.77$             

8748 Van-cargo  light duty, class 1 225 - 300 hour 22.44$             

8749 Van-cargo   light duty, class 2 225-300 hour 22.68$             

8750 Vehicle, Small to 30 hour 6.41$               

8753 Vehicle, Recreational to 10 hour 2.87$               

8754 Motor Coach GVW=50534 56 Passenger + 1-Driver 430 Passenger Transportation Hour 63.94$             

8755 Golf Cart Capacity 2 person 0 Battery operated hour 3.80$               

8770 Welder, Portable to 16

Includes ground cable and lead 

cable. hour 4.11$               

8771 Welder, Portable to 34

Includes ground cable and lead 

cable. hour 7.21$               

8772 Welder, Portable to 50

Includes ground cable and lead 

cable. hour 13.66$             

8773 Welder, Portable to 80

Includes ground cable and lead 

cable. hour 13.75$             

8780 Truck, Water Tank Capacity 2500 Gal to 175

Include pump and rear spray 

system. hour 31.05$             

8781 Truck, Water Tank Capacity 4000 Gal to 250

Include pump and rear spray 

system. hour 56.57$             

8788 Container & roll off truck  Roll off Truck 30 yds, 200 Roll-off-Truck only hour 23.73$             

8789 Truck, Tractor 1997 Freightliner F120 430 hour 56.81$             

8790 Truck, Tractor 4 x 2 25000 lbs to 210 hour 43.43$             

8791 Truck, Tractor 4 x 2 35000 lbs to 330 hour 47.57$             

8792 Truck, Tractor 6 x 2 45000 lbs to 360 hour 52.98$             

8794 Truck, freight

Enclosed w/lift gate. Medium duty 

class 5 gvwr 16000-19500 Lbs 200 4 X 2 Axle (D) hour 27.25$             

8795 Truck, backhoe carrier  Three axle, class 8, heavy duty over 33000Lbs 280 hour 34.56$             

8796 Truck, freight

Eenclosed w/lift gate. Heavy duty, 

class 7 26,001 to 33,000 lbs gvwr 217 4 X 2 Axle (D) hour 31.43$             

8798 Truck

 Tilt and roll-back, two axle, class 7 

heavy duty, to 33,000 gvwr 217 4 X 2 Axle (D) hour 32.13$             

8799 Truck, 

Tilt and roll back, three axle. class 8 

heavy duty over 33,001+ gvwr 280 6 X 4 Axle (D) hour 42.33$             

8800 Truck, Pickup When transporting people. mile 0.545$             

8801 Truck, Pickup 1/2-ton Pickup Truck 4x2-Axle 160 hour 12.78$             

8802 Truck, Pickup 1-ton Pickup Truck 4x2-Axle 234 hour 17.91$             

8803 Truck, Pickup 1 1/4-ton Pickup Truck 4x2-Axle 260 hour 21.10$             

8804 Truck, Pickup 1 1/2-ton Pickup Truck 4x2-Axle 300 hour 23.22$             



8805 Truck, Pickup 1 3/4-ton Pickup Truck 4x2-Axle 300 hour 24.85$             

8806 Truck, Pickup 3/4-ton Pickup Truck 4x2-Axle 165 hour 14.32$             

8807 Truck, Pickup 3/4-ton Pickup Truck 4x4-Axle 285 Crew hour 22.64$             

8808 Truck, Pickup 1-ton Pickup Truck 4x4-Axle 340 Crew hour 22.99$             

8809 Truck, Pickup 1 1/4-ton Pickup Truck 4x4-Axle 360 Crew hour 26.55$             

8810 Truck, Pickup 1 1/2-ton Pickup Truck 4x4-Axle 362 Crew hour 26.82$             

8811 Truck, Pickup 1 3/4-ton Pickup Truck 4x4-Axle 362 Crew hour 27.55$             

8820 Skidder accessory  2005 JCB Grapple Claw 0 hour 1.75$               

8821 Forklift, accessory 2005 ACS Grapple Bucket 0 hour 1.56$               

8822 Truck,  Loader 

Debris/Log  (Knuckleboom 

Loader/Truck) 230 hour 53.22$             

8823 Chipper- Wood Recycler  Cat 16 engine 700 hour 118.50$           

8824 Skidder model Cat 525B up to 160 hour 64.79$             

8825 Skidder 40K lbs- model Cat  525C 161 and up hour 128.67$           

8840 Truck, service  fuel and lube up to 26,000 gvwr 215-225 hour 40.19$             

8841 Truck, fuel

2009 International 1,800 gal. storage 

tank 200 hour 32.01$             

8842 Mobile Command Trailer (8’ X 28’) with 7.5 KW Generator 0 Move to Location by Tractor hour 14.73$             

8843 Mobile Response Trailer  (8’ X 31’) with 4.5 KW Generator? 0 Move to Location by Tractor hour 13.87$             

8844 Mobile Command Center (unified) (RV) Ulitimaster MP-35 43 FT Long with Generator 400 hour 86.10$             

8845 Mobile Command Post Vehicle   (RV) (In- Motion) 22-Ft Long 340 hour 31.55$             

8846 Mobile Command Post Vehicle 

 (RV) (Stationary)  w/9.6 KW 

Generator 22-Ft Long 340 hour 20.33$             

8847 Mobile Command Center (Trailer) 

48'x8' Trailer, Fully Equiped Mobile 

Command Center 48-Ft Long 0 Move to Location by Tractor hour 31.69$             

8848 Mobile Command Center (Trailer)    

48'x8' When being Moved w/Truck 

Tractor 310 hour 50.69$             

8849 Mobile Command Center 

43'x8.5' x 13.5'H with self 30kw 

Generator 280 Generator Rate not included hour 55.37$             

8850 Mobile Command Center  2007-Freightliner MT-55, (RV) 260 hour 47.12$             

8851 Mobile Command Van   

1990- Ford Econoline- 

Communication Van 230 Communication Equipment hour 42.78$             

8852 Mobile Command Center  

47.5' X 8.75 Fully Equip' (In motion) 

(RV) 410 hour 68.04$             

8853 Mobile Command Center 47.5' X 8.75 Fully Equip' (Stationary) 410 hour 45.89$             

8854 Mobile Command Vehicle  53' X 8.75 Fully Equip  480-550 hour 98.84$             

8870 Light Tower 

Terex/Amida AL 4000.  with (4) 500 

watt lights w/10kw power unit   13.5 hour 11.11$             

8871 Light Tower  2004 Allmand hour 6.93$               

8872 SandBagger Machine    (Spider) automatic w/Vibration & Conveyor Motors 2-4.5 hour 49.42$             

8900 Helicopter  

OH-58 KIOWA (Military) is the same 

as “Bell-206B3 420 hour 467.00$           

8901 Helicopter  

OH-58 KIOWA (Military) is the same 

as “Bell-206BR 420 hour 489.00$           

8902 Helicopter

Model Bell 206-L3 Jet Range 

Helicopter 650  Jet Range III-Helicopter hour 575.00$           

8903 Helicopter Model Bell 206L1 Long Ranger 650 Long Ranger hour 585.47$           

8904 Helicopter 

Model Bell 206LT Long Range 

Twinranger 450 Twinranger hour 763.30$           

8905 Helicopter Model Bell 407 EMS- Ambulance 250 hour 625.35$           

8906 Piper-Fixed wing Model Navajo PA-31 310 hour 476.60$           

8907 Piper-Fixed wing 

PA-31-350, Navajo Chieftn twin 

engine 350 hour 507.20$           

8908 Sikorsky Helicopter Model UH-60 (Blackhawk) medium lift Medium Lift 1890 Fire Fighter Same as S70C hour 2,974.45$        

8909 Helicopter Model UH-A (Blackhawk) Medium lift Medium Lift 1890 Fire Fighter hour 5,559.04$        

8910 Boeing Helicopter Model CH-47 (Chinook) heavy lift Heavy Lift 2850 Fire Fighter hour 10,857.50$      

8911 Helicopter- light utility Model  Bell 407GX - 7 seater 7-Seaters 675 Passenger Aircraft hour 620.38$           

8912 Helicopter- light utility Modle Bell 206L- 7 seater 7-Seaters 420 Passenger Aircraft hour 607.92$           

8913 Helicopter  Model Bell-206L4 726 hour 570.24$           

8914 King Air 200 Turboprop Aircraft Blackhawk King Air B200XP61 669 hour 1,318.11$        

8915 Turboprops Blackhawk Aircraft Blackhawk Caravan XP42 A 850 hour 738.12$           

8916 Turboprops Blackhawk Aircraft  King Air C90 XP135 A 550 hour 1,108.33$        

8917 Aerostar Piston Aircraft Aerostar 601P 290 hour 466.67$           

8918 Bell UH -1H Huey Helicopter II

Engine:1 × Lycoming T53-L-11 

turboshaft 1100

Travel Range 253 Nautical 

Miles hour 1,376.74$        



8943 Wire Puller Machine Overhead Wire Pulling Machine 30

Overhead/Underground Wire 

Pulling Machine hour 20.16$             

8944 Wire Tensioning Machine 3000 Lbs 

Overhead Wire Tensioning 

Machine hour 14.84$             

8945 Aerial Lift - 20 Ft High model 2008 Genie Scissor Lift 1000 Lbs 24 Volt hour 6.44$               



BOARD MEETING ACTIVITY 01‐01‐2018 – 04‐05‐2021  
 

Architectural Board Meetings – Meets as Needed 

 No current activity  

Board of Adjustment Meetings – Meets First Monday of Each Month 

10/01/2018 – 6:30pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
05/06/2019 ‐ 6:30pm  

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
11/04/2019 ‐ 6:30pm  

 Agenda: Uploaded         
12/02/2019 ‐ 6:00pm   

 Cancellation: Uploaded 
01/06/2020 ‐ 6:00pm  

 Agenda: Uploaded       
 

Board of Parks and Parkways – Meets First Wednesday of the Month on a Quarterly 

Basis 
01/17/2018 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
03/07/2018 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
06/06/2018 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
09/12/2018 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Cancellation: Uploaded 
10/03/2018 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
01/09/2019 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
04/10/2019 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
 
 



06/05/2019 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
07/30/2019 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
11/05/2019 ‐ 5:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
12/04/2019 ‐ 5:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
01/07/2020 ‐ 5:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
03/10/2020 ‐ 5:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 
12/16/2020 ‐ 4:00pm / Virtual 

 Agenda: Uploaded 
 

Code Compliance Board – Meets First Tuesday of Each Month 

02/06/2018 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 
04/03/2018 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
05/01/2018 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
06/05/2018 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
08/14/2018 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded/ reschedule due to lack of quorum 
09/04/2018 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
10/02/2018 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
11/06/2018 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 



 Minutes: Uploaded  
01/08/2019 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
02/05/2019 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
03/05/2019 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded/ reschedule due to lack of quorum 
04/02/2019 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
05/07/2019 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded/ reschedule due to lack of quorum 
06/04/2019 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
08/06/2019 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
08/06/2019 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
08/06/2019 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
08/22/2019 ‐ 6:00pm (Work Shop)  

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
09/03/2019 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded/ reschedule due to lack of quorum 
10/01/2019 ‐ 7:00pm   

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
11/05/2019 ‐ 7:00pm   

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
12/03/2019 ‐ 7:00pm   

 Cancellation due to lack of quorum 
01/07/2020 ‐ 7:00pm   

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
 



02/04/2020 ‐ 7:00pm   

 Agenda: Uploaded/ cancelled due to lack of quorum 
03/03/2020 ‐ 7:00pm   

 Agenda: Uploaded/ cancelled due to lack of quorum 
09/01/2020 ‐ 7:00pm   

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
10/06/2020 ‐ 7:00pm   

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
12/01/2020 ‐ 7:00pm   

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
01/05/2021 ‐ 7:00pm   

 Agenda: Uploaded 
03/02/2021‐ 7:00pm   

 Agenda: Uploaded 
 

Code Review Board – Meets Fourth Thursday of the Month on a Quarterly Basis 

08/30/2018‐ 7:00pm   

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
 

Disability Advisory Board – Meets Fourth Thursday of the Month on a as needed 

Basis 
08/03/2017 – 5:00pm  

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
03/01/2018 – 5:30pm  

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
08/14/2019 – 5:30pm  

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
03/11/2020 – 5:30pm  

 Agenda: Uploaded 
 

Ecology Board ‐ Meets Second Thursday of the Month on a Bimonthly Basis 

02/22/2018 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
04/12/2018 ‐ 7:00pm 



 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
04/11/2019 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
06/13/2019 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
09/12/2019 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
11/14/2019 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
01/19/2020 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
03/12/2020 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
01/14/2021 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

Education Advisory Board ‐ Meets Third Tuesday of the Month on a Quarterly Basis 

02/20/2018 ‐ 6:30pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
05/08/2018 ‐ 6:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
09/18/2018 ‐ 6:30pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
03/19/2019 ‐ 6:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
05/21/2019 ‐ 6:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded/ cancelled due to lack of quorum 
09/17/2019 ‐ 6:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded/ cancelled due to lack of quorum 
10/15/2019 ‐ 6:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  



01/21/2020 ‐ 6:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 
03/16/2020 ‐ 6:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded/ cancelled due to lack of quorum 
 

Golf and Country Club Advisory Board ‐ Meets as Needed 

No current activity  
 

Historic Preservation Board – Meets Third Wednesday of the Month on a Bimonthly 

Basis 
02/21/2018 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
04/18/2018 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded/ Rescheduled 
05/16/2018 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
08/15/2018 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded/ Rescheduled  
09/19/2018 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
02/13/2019 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
05/01/2019 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded / Reschedule  
05/08/2019 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
09/11/2019 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
11/20/2019 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
01/22/2020 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 
03/10/2020 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 
 



Recreation Commission – Meets Second Tuesday of the Month on a Bimonthly Basis 

03/06/2018 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
 
05/22/2018 ‐ 7:00pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
 

Zoning and Planning Board – Meets First Monday of Each Month 

04/01/2019 – 6:30pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
06/03/2019 – 6:30pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 

 Minutes: Uploaded  
11/04/2019 – 6:30pm 

 Agenda: Uploaded 
 
 
 
Boards that Meet on an As‐Needed Basis 
Architectural Review 
Disability Advisory 
Golf Advisory   
 

 



 

Office of the City Clerk   Revised February, 2021 

Office of the City Clerk 

Advisory Boards Membership Roster 
 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT (§150.110) / ZONING AND PLANNING BOARD (§150.100) 

Meets First Monday of Each Month 
 

This Board is composed of five members, appointed by the Mayor and Council for staggered three-year terms. Ordinance 708-85 (9/9/1985) provides 

for an alternate member whose appointment is rotated between the Mayor and Councilmembers consecutively [§150-110 (E)].  Board of Adjustment 

members may also serve on the Zoning & Planning Board, and have traditionally done so.  

 

Member Appointed by Current Member 
Month/Year Term 

Expires 

Original 

Appointment Date 
Last Appointment Date 

Mayor Juan Molina 06-23-2020 01-29-2015 06-23-2017 

Council – Group I Bill Tallman 03-12-2024 03-12-2018 03-12-2021 

Council – Group II Ernie Aloma 08-06-2022 04-13-2009 01-11-2011 

Council – Group III Rogelio Madan 07-31-2022 06-26-2017 06-26-2017 

Council – Group IV Joe Valencia  06-07-2021 06-07-2018 06-07-2018 

Alternate  Ralph Kropp 04-30-2022 04-30-2019 04-30-2019 

 

Mayor    Group I  Group II   Group III                 Group IV   

Juan Molina   Bill Tallman  Ernie Aloma   Rogelio Madan          Joe Valencia  

31 Hunting Lodge Ct.  901 Falcon Ave 258 Pinecrest Dr.  660 Oriole Ave.          25 South Drive 

305.975.8897 (C)  305.889.0419 (H) 305.805.0933 (H)  305.775.3095 (C)          305.885.5135 (H) 

Juan@juanmolina.com  305.284-1581 (W) 305.986.3108 (C)  RogelioMadanZPB@gmail.com         305.992.3929 (C) 

    305.799.2455 (C) 305.446.2788 (W)                 jvalencia@rccl.com 
              Btall@miami.edu  Ealoma@aol.com          
Alternate 

Ralph Kropp 

1010 Redbird Ave. 

305.613.1938 (C) 

ral664@gmail.com 

 
** Alternate Member – Rotation (Appointed by Vice Mayor Best – Group I) 

mailto:juan@juanmolina.com
mailto:RogelioMadanZPB@gmail.com
mailto:jvalencia@rccl.com
mailto:Btall@miami.edu
mailto:Ealoma@aol.com
mailto:ral664@gmail.com


 

Office of the City Clerk   Revised February, 2021 

Office of the City Clerk 

Advisory Boards Membership Roster 

 
ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD – SECTION 32.100 

Meets as Needed 

  
This Board consists of five members, appointed by the Mayor and Council members for 2-year terms. The Board was established by Ordinance No. 

901-2003 (9/22/2003) and reconstituted by Ordinance No. 916-2004 (10/11/2004).   

 

No Board member who shall have served three consecutive terms of office shall be eligible to serve an additional term of office for two years 

thereafter, unless the appointment for any subsequent additional terms shall be confirmed by a majority of the City Council. 

 

Member Appointed by Current Member 
Month/Year Term 

Expires 

Original 

Appointment Date 
Last Appointment Date 

Mayor Marc Scavuzzo - Chair 08-06-2021 08-27-2012 11-09-2015 

Council – Group I Valentine Soler 10-09-2022 01-14-2013 10-09-2018 

Council – Group II VACANT VACANT VACANT VACANT 

Council – Group III Freddy Albiza 07-31-2021 08-27-2012 11-09-2015 

Council – Group IV VACANT VACANT VACANT VACANT 

 

Mayor     Group I   Group II   Group III   Group IV  
Marc Scavuzzo   Valentine Soler   VACANT  Fredy Alpiza   VACANT 
871 Lake Dr.   26 S. Royal Poinciana Blvd.     1063 Nightingale Ave.  

305.888.6942 (H)  305.887.4616 (H)      305.883.6792 (H)  
305.776.8921 (C)   (no email)       305.332.3854 (C)  
Marc@scavuzzoassociates.com         afbuilders@aol.com           

                                     Accessoryworldcustoms@gmail.com 

mailto:marc@scavuzzoassociates.com
mailto:afbuilders@aol.com
mailto:accessoryworldcustoms@gmail.com


 

Office of the City Clerk   Revised February, 2021 

Office of the City Clerk 

Advisory Boards Membership Roster 
 

CIVIL SERVICE BOARD (Chapter 34)  

Meets as Required 

 
This Board consists of five members: two representatives elected by City employees, two representatives appointed by Council, and a fifth member 

selected by the other four members. The Board was established originally by Ordinance 101, amended by Resolution 2237 (eliminating Police & Fire 

members) and by Ordinance 598-77 and 639-79. Council appointments are on a rotating basis. All terms are three years. General rules and 

procedures for all boards provided in Ordinance 731-88 and provisions for removal with or without cause contained in Ordinance 732-88 also govern.  

“Section 34.02 (A)………. Nothing herein or hereinafter set forth shall make it unlawful for any member of the board to serve for more than one 

term.” 

 

Member Appointed by Current Member 
Month/Year Term 

Expires 

Original 

Appointment Date 
Last Appointment Date 

Council  Rob Youngs** 06-30-2015 01-11-2010 01-11-2010 

Council Carrie Figueredo* 06-30-2015 08-24-2009 08-24-2009 

Employees VACANT 06-30-2016 VACANT VACANT 

Employees VACANT 06-30-2015 06-20-2012 06-20-2012 

Fifth Member VACANT 06-30-2015 VACANT VACANT 

 

Council   Council   Employees  Employees   5th Member  

Rob Youngs   Carrie Figueredo  VACANT  VACANT   VACANT 

1070 Bass Point Rd.  330 S. Melrose Dr.      

305.790.8191 (C)  786.247.0199 (C)      

305.863.0315 (H)  305.883.2145 (H) 
Robyoungs2@aol.com   Carrie.figueredo@coulter.com  

 

* Appointed by Vice Mayor Best – Group 1 on 8/24/2009 (Next appointment: Group 2) 

** Appointed by Councilwoman Ator – Group 4 on 1/11/2010 (Next appointment: Group 1) Term 2012-2015 

 

 

 

mailto:robyoungs2@aol.com
mailto:Carrie.figueredo@coulter.com


 

Office of the City Clerk   Revised February, 2021 

Office of the City Clerk 

Advisory Boards Membership Roster 
 

CODE COMPLIANCE BOARD (§32.65 – F.S.S. §162.05)  

Meets First Tuesday of Each Month 

 
This Board consists of seven members appointed for 3-year terms.  Board was established by Ordinance 661-82 as a 6-member Board, but was changed 

to a 7-member Board as required by amended State Law, via Ordinance 664-82.  General provisions of Ordinance 731-88 related to all boards, removal 

provisions with or without cause contained in Ordinance 732-88 and 788-92, which mandates removal for missing three meetings within a six-month 

period, also apply.  (Effective October 1993, this Board meets once a month, as approved by Council on 10/11/1993). 

 

Member Appointed by Current Member 
Month/Year Term 

Expires 

Original 

Appointment Date 
Last Appointment Date 

Mayor Jorge Filgueira 03-23-2021 08-27-2012 03-23-2018 

Council – Group I Marlene B. Jiménez - Chair 10-09-2021 03-02-2005 10-09-2018 

Council – Group I VACANT VACANT VACANT VACANT 

Council – Group II John Bankston 09-30-2023 09-23-2002 09-30-2017 

Council – Group III Juan Khoury 09-30-2020 08-21-2019 08-21-2019 

Council – Group III Jacqueline Martinez Regueira 07-31-2022 06-09-2003 11-09-2015 

Council – Group IV Aldrick Diaz 01-17-2023 01-17-2020 01-17-2020 
 

Mayor  Group I  Group II  Group II     Group III        Group IV  

VACANT Marlene Jimenez Juan Khoury  John Bankston     Jacqueline Martinez-Regueira       Aldrick Diaz 

  611 Plover Ave.  1238 Robin Ave 260 Albatross      400 Palmetto Dr.        461 Curtiss Parkway 

  786.423.7057 (C) 305.773.0411 (C) 305.343.2991 (C)    305.822.7511 (W)        305.761.9093 (C) 
  mbj5758@yahoo.com kho99@bellsouth.net  kranky4u@bellsouth.net    lawyerjmr@aol.com                      aldrick.diaz@gmail.com 

              305.903-3325 (C) 

Mayor 
Jorge Filgueira 

191 Chippewa St. 

305.884.6229 (H) 

754.264.4195 
Jfilgueirams@gmail.com   

 

The additional two members of the board shall be individually selected by members of the 
Council, the responsibility of which will rotate, with the Mayor and Council Member in 
Group 1 having the first two appointments, and following sequentially through the 
Council upon the expiration of the board members term.  

 
Last rotation: Mayor to Group 1; Group 2 to group 3. 01/29/2021 



 

Office of the City Clerk   Revised February, 2021 

Office of the City Clerk 

Advisory Boards Membership Roster 
              

CODE REVIEW BOARD (§32.10)  

Meets Fourth Thursday of the Month on a Quarterly Basis (has not met) 

 
Originally created as "Charter Review Board" by Ordinance 553, members of the original Board were renamed "Code Review Board" by amending 

Ordinance 571.  Members are appointed to staggered 3-year terms.  Additional amending ordinances are 637-79 and 734-88.  General rules provided in 

Ordinance 731-88 and 732-88 provisions for removal with or without cause and 788-92 which mandates removal for missing three meetings within a 12-

month period also apply.  Ordinance No. 851-99, adopted on March 22, 1999 eliminates membership restrictions for City agencies and committees.  

“32.12 (B) ………No board member who shall have served 3 consecutive terms of office, shall be eligible to serve an additional term of office for two 

years thereafter, unless the appointment for any additional term shall be confirmed by a majority of the council.” 

 

Member Appointed by Current Member 
Month/Year Term 

Expires 

Original 

Appointment Date 
Last Appointment Date 

Mayor VACANT VACANT VACANT VACANT 

Council – Group I Maria (Nuñez) Garrett 09-15-2023 05-08-2009 06-20-2017 

Council – Group II Dr. Joe Bauerlein 07-12-2021 07-12-2018 07-12-2018 

Council – Group III Maria Fernandez 07-31-2022 04-25-2016 04-25-2016 

Council – Group IV Jana Armstrong 08-23-2020 06-11-2001 08-23-2017 

 

Mayor   Group I   Group II   Group III   Group IV  

VACANT  Maria Garrett Nuñez  Dr. Joe Bauerlein  Maria Fernandez  Jana Armstrong 

   351 Swallow Dr. #1  1075 Bluebird Avenue 904 Meadowlark Ave.  731 Wren Ave. 

   305.805.1709 (H)  305.888.9923 (H)  305.528.6443 (C)  305.888.4989 (H) 

       305.498.2468 (C)  Rmja@bellsouth.net  305.790.5559 (C) 
       Bauerlein@comcast.net                 Jarmstrong@continentalts.com  

              

mailto:Rmja@bellsouth.net
mailto:Bauerlein@comcast.net
mailto:Jarmstrong@continentalts.com


 

Office of the City Clerk   Revised February, 2021 

Office of the City Clerk 

Advisory Boards Membership Roster 
              

DISABILITY ADVISORY BOARD (§32.85) 

Meets as Needed 

 
This Board consists of five members, and it was originally established by Ordinance 828-95 on December 11, 1995.  Term of office for all members is 

three years.  General provisions of Ordinance 731-88 and provisions for removal with or without cause contained in Ordinance 732-88 and Ordinance 

788-92 which mandates removal for missing three meetings within a 12-month period also apply. Ordinance No. 851-99, adopted on March 22, 1999 

eliminates membership restrictions for City agencies and committees.  “§32.86…….. No board member who shall have served three consecutive terms 

of office shall be eligible to serve an additional term of office for two years thereafter, unless the appointment for any additional term shall be 

confirmed by a majority of City Council.” 

 

Member Appointed by Current Member 
Month/Year Term 

Expires 

Original 

Appointment Date 
Last Appointment Date 

Mayor Michael Windrem 08-06-2022 03-04-2016 03-04-2016 

Council – Group I Catherine Stadnik 09-15-2023 12-14-1998 06-20-2017 

Council – Group II Elizabeth K. Fisher 02-24-2024 02-24-2021 02-24-2021 

Council – Group III Jaqueline C. Olivas 09-18-2023 09-18-2020 09-18-2020 

Council – Group IV Eric Elza 06-26-2020 06-26-2017 06-26-2017 

 

Mayor    Group I   Group II   Group III   Group IV  

Michael Windrem  Catherine (Cathy) Stadnik Elizabeth K. Fisher  Jaqueline Olivas Eric Elza 

740 Plover Ave.  485 Deer Run    448 lark Avenue  1100 Westward Dr 98 Canal St. 

305.79 3.6615  (C)  305.888.3865 (H)   305.434.2003 (C)  786-973-6860 (C)  786.897.8345 (H) 

Mwindrem@aol.com  Cstadnik@hotmail.com  gfwcelizfisher@gmail.com    Eric.elza@gmail.com  

    jcgomez0305@gmail.com 

  

 

 

 

 
 

 

mailto:Mwindrem@aol.com
mailto:Cstadnik@hotmail.com
mailto:gfwcelizfisher@gmail.com
mailto:Eric.elza@gmail.com
mailto:jcgomez0305@gmail.com


 

Office of the City Clerk   Revised February, 2021 

Office of the City Clerk 

Advisory Boards Membership Roster 

 
ECOLOGY BOARD (§32.40) 

Meets Second Thursday of the Month on a Bimonthly Basis 

 
This Board consists of five members, appointed by the Mayor and Councilmembers for staggered three-year terms.  The Board was established by 

Resolution 2256 (10-13-75) which was rescinded, and the Board was reestablished by Ordinance 635-79 (10-8-79) and amended by Ordinance 736-88.  

General rules of Ordinance 731-88 and provisions for removal with or without cause contained in Ordinance 732-88 and Ordinance 788-92, which 

mandates removal for missing three meetings within a 12-month period, also apply to this Board.  Ordinance No. 851-99, adopted on March 22, 1999 

eliminates membership restrictions for City agencies and committees.  “§32.40……. No board member who shall have served three consecutive terms 

of office shall be eligible to serve an additional term of office for two years thereafter, unless the appointment for any additional term shall be 

confirmed by a majority of the council." 

 

Member Appointed by Current Member 
Month/Year Term 

Expires 

Original 

Appointment Date 
Last Appointment Date 

Mayor Wendy Anderson-Booher – Chair 08-06-2022 01-12-2009 11-09-2015 

Council – Group I VACANT 10-09-2021 10-28-2013 VACANT 

Council – Group II Jen Llerena 09-15-2023 10-02-2019 10-02-2019 

Council – Group III James Q. Steele- Vice Chair 07-31-2022 04-25-2016 04-25-2016 

Council – Group IV Maria Font 07-16-2021 07-16-2018 07-16-2018 

 

Mayor     Group I   Group II           Group III   Group IV  
Wendy Anderson-Booher   Ann Trina Aguila   Jen Llerena   James Q. Steele Maria Font 

215 North Royal Poinciana Blvd. 901 Oriole Ave.   393 Minola Dr.  508 La Villa Dr. 267 Nahkoda Dr. 

305.888.6907 (H)   305.805.9617 (H)   305.307.9912 (C)   305.527.2576 (C)  305.527.7153 (C) 

Wendy.cee@gmail.com   305.586.0045 (C)   305.443.3339  (W)  Niudane@yahoo.com maria.font327@gmail.com 

*CHAIR     Anntrina@hotmail.com     jenniferllerena@hotmsai * VICE-CHAIR    
    

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:Wendy.cee@gmail.com
mailto:Niudane@yahoo.com
mailto:maria.font327@gmail.com
mailto:Anntrina@hotmail.com
mailto:jenniferllerena@hotmsai


 

Office of the City Clerk   Revised February, 2021 

Office of the City Clerk 

Advisory Boards Membership Roster 
 

EDUCATION ADVISORY BOARD (§32.99)  

Meets Third Tuesday of the Month on a Quarterly Basis 

 
This Board consists of five members, and it was originally established by Ordinance No. 872-2001 adopted on May 14, 2001.  Term of office for all 

members is two years. “§32.99 (A)……….. No board member who shall have served three consecutive terms of office shall be eligible to serve an 

additional term of office for two years thereafter, unless the appointment for any subsequent additional term shall be confirmed by a majority of City 

Council.” 

 

Member Appointed by Current Member 
Month/Year Term 

Expires 

Original 

Appointment Date 
Last Appointment Date 

Mayor Aileen Vega - Chair 08-06-2021 06-29-2017 06-29-2017 

Council – Group I Constantino Hernandez 09-15-2022 04-27-2015 06-20-2017 

Council – Group II Tanya Fuentes 08-05-2021 06-28-2017 06-25-2017 

Council – Group III Ilia Molina – Vice Chair 07-31-2021 02-05-2015 11-09-2015 

Council – Group IV VACANT 06-11-2021 06-11-2019 06-11-2019 

 

 

 

Mayor    Group I   Group II  Group III           Group IV  

Aileen Vega           Constantino Hernandez Tanya Fuentes   Ilia Molina           VACANT 

220 Lawn Way  220 Lawn Way  248 South Dr.  31 Hunting Lodge Ct.           

786.282.5146  (C)  786.302.7227 (C)  305.458.6843  305.213.4542 (C)           
Aileenvega2014@gmail.com   Tino.marbayrealestate@gmail.com   Tmperez1@aol.com  Drmolina@myclassisfun.com        

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:Aileenvega2014@gmail.com
mailto:Tino.marbayrealestate@gmail.com
mailto:Tmperez1@aol.com
mailto:Drmolina@myclassisfun.com


 

Office of the City Clerk   Revised February, 2021 

Office of the City Clerk 

Advisory Boards Membership Roster 
               

GOLF AND COUNTRY CLUB ADVISORY BOARD (§32.92)  

Meets as Needed 

 

This Board consists of five members, and it was originally established by Ordinance No. 854-99 adopted on June 28, 1999.  Term of office 

for all members is two years.  “§32.93……. No board member who shall have served three consecutive terms of office shall be eligible to 

serve an additional term of office for two years thereafter, unless the appointment for any subsequent additional term shall be confirmed 

by a majority of City Council.” 

 

 

Member Appointed by Current Member 
Month/Year Term 

Expires 

Original 

Appointment Date 
Last Appointment Date 

Mayor Michael Dominguez 08-06-2021 04-12-2010 11-09-2015 

Council – Group I Mark Safreed 09-15-2022 08-08-2005 06-19-2017 

Council – Group II VACANT 08-04-2019 --- 08-04-2017 

Council – Group III Ken Amendola 08-23-2021 10-10-2011 11-09-2015 

Council – Group IV VACANT VACANT VACANT VACANT 

 

Mayor    Group I       Group II   Group III   Group IV  

Michael Dominguez  Mark Safreed       Shawn Devendorf  Ken Amendola  Arturo Rabade 

899 Lake Dr.   1180 Ibis Ave.       360 South Dr.  454 Hunting Lodge Dr. 1171 Wren Ave. 

305.970.3450 (C)  786.423.5661 (C)      305.458.8812 (C)  954.612.3277 (C)  305.773.4088 (C) 

305.871.2320 (W)  305.883.4686 (H)      305.671.1341 (W)  305.883.1815 (H)  305.863.1880 (H) 
Firestopmike34@yahoo.com Safreed.mark@sfl.sysco.com     Shawn01@comcast.net Amendolabeverages@att.net Rabade57@yahoo.com  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

mailto:Firestopmike34@yahoo.com
mailto:Safreed.mark@sfl.sysco.com
mailto:Shawn01@comcast.net
mailto:Amendolabeverages@att.net
mailto:Rabade57@yahoo.com


 

Office of the City Clerk   Revised February, 2021 

Office of the City Clerk 

Advisory Boards Membership Roster 
              

HISTORIC PRESERVATION BOARD (§32.75 and §153.10) 

Meets Third Wednesday of the Month on a Bimonthly Basis 

 
This Board consists of five members appointed for staggered three-year terms. (Established by Ordinance 662-82).  Amended by Ordinance 676-83 to 

meet Federal and State requirements, terms of office were changed to five years, then amended once again by Ordinance 684-83 to three year terms.  

Additional amending ordinances are 740-88 and 744-88.  General provisions of Ordinance 731-88 related to all boards and provisions of Ordinance 732-

88 for removal with or without cause and of Ordinance 788-92 which mandates removal for missing three meetings within a 12-month period also apply.  

Ordinance No. 851-99, adopted on March 22, 1999 eliminates membership restrictions for City agencies and committees.  “§153.11………  No board 

member who shall have served three consecutive terms of office, shall be eligible to serve an additional term of office for two years thereafter, unless 

the appointment for any additional term shall be confirmed by a majority of the council.” 

 

Member Appointed by Current Member 
Month/Year Term 

Expires 

Original 

Appointment Date 
Last Appointment Date 

Mayor Sydney Garton - Chair 10-14-2022 11-08-1993 10-14-2019 

Council – Group I Charles M. Hill 10-09-2021 03-08-2004 11-09-2015 

Council – Group II Yvonne Shonberger – Vice Chair 09-15-2023 06-13-2005 06-26-2017 

Council – Group III Dr. James Watson 07-31-2021 06-09-2014 11-09-2015 

Council – Group IV VACANT VACANT VACANT VACANT 

 

Mayor   Group I       Group II     Group III   Group IV   
Sydney Garton  Charles M. Hill      Yvonne Shonberger     Dr. James Watson  VACANT 
464 Minola Dr. 841 Heron Ave.      85 Deer Run     350 Cardinal St.    
305.887.6698 (H) 305.884.8899 (H)       305.887.2973 (H)     786.863.9963 (C)    
305.322.8322 (C) 305.301.3516 (C)      The_Alamo@bellsouth.net    Jwatson350@hotmail.com     

Syd464@aol.com Charlesmhill3@aol.com          
Chair  
 
 
        
 
 
   

mailto:The_Alamo@bellsouth.net
mailto:Jwatson350@hotmail.com
mailto:Syd464@aol.com
mailto:Charlesmhill3@aol.com


 

Office of the City Clerk   Revised February, 2021 

Office of the City Clerk 

Advisory Boards Membership Roster 
 

MEMORIAL COMMITTEE (§32.20)  

Meets as Required 

 
Established by Ordinance 601-77, and amended by Ordinance 699-85, this Committee consists of five members who are members by virtue of their 

positions as Chairs of other committees.  Terms of office on the Memorial Committee coincide with the terms of Chairmanship on the Board or 

organization from which they are drawn.  General provisions of Ordinance 731-88 and 732-88 also apply.  Members are: Chairs of the Historic 

Preservation Board, the Recreation Commission, the Board of Parks and Parkways, the Board of Adjustment/Zoning & Planning Board and the President 

of the Miami Springs Ministerial Association. 

 

Name 

Sydney Garton, Chairman, Historic Preservation Board  - 305.887.6698 home 

 

Chairman, Recreation Commission 

 

Eric Richey, Chairman, Board of Parks and Parkways – 305.297.4983 cell 

 

Manuel Pérez-Vichot, Chairman, Board of Adjustment/Zoning – 305.989.4132 cell 

 

The Reverend Mother Susan Keedy, All Angels Episcopal Church, 1801 Ludlum Drive – 305.885.1780 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 



 

Office of the City Clerk   Revised February, 2021 

Office of the City Clerk 

Advisory Boards Membership Roster 
             

BOARD OF PARKS & PARKWAYS (§32.30)  

Meets First Wednesday of the Month on a Quarterly Basis 

 
This Board was originally established by Resolution 854 (4-8-63) and amended by Resolution 2262 and 78-2478.  Council rescinded the resolutions and 

reestablished the Board by Ordinance 634-79.  Subsequent amendment was by Ordinance 735-88.  The Board consists of five members appointed for 

staggered three-year terms.  In addition, general provisions of Ordinance 731-88 and provisions of Ordinance 732-88 for removal with or without 

cause and Ordinance 788-92 for missing three meetings within a 12-month period also apply.  Ordinance No. 851-99, adopted on March 22, 1999 

eliminates membership restrictions for City agencies and committees.  “§32.30…….. No board member who shall have served 3 consecutive terms of 

office shall be eligible to serve an additional term of office for two years thereafter, unless the appointment for any additional term shall be 

confirmed by a majority of the council.” 

 

Member Appointed by Current Member 
Month/Year Term 

Expires 

Original 

Appointment Date 
Last Appointment Date 

Mayor Eric Richey - Chair 08-06-2022 02-13-1989 11-09-2015 

Council – Group I Pamela Carneri 10-09-2021 06-19-2017 10-09-2018 

Council – Group II Lynne V. Brooks 09-06-2021 08-08-2011 9-06-2018 

Council – Group III Jacqueline Neetz 04-02-2022 04-02-2019 04-02-2019 

Council – Group IV Michelle Baumann 01-23-2023 01-24-2020 01-24-2020 

 

Mayor    Group I    Group II     Group III        Group IV    

Eric Richey    Pamela Carneri  Lynne V. Brooks    Jacqueline Neetz       Michelle Baumann 

224 Reinette Dr.  1271 Quail Ave.  520 Falcon Ave.    950 Plover Ave.  1131 Starling Avenue 

305.297.4983 (C)  305.606.8331   305.542.3984 (C)    305-582-0511 (C)       305.798.7855 (C) 

305.888.5918 (H)  Parcar20@hotmail.com   Lillynie@bellsouth.net    jacquieMDFR@gmail.com mmbtwinkle@gmail.com  

Erichey842@aol.com               

 

 

 

      

 
 

mailto:Parcar20@hotmail.com
mailto:Lillynie@bellsouth.net
mailto:jacquieMDFR@gmail.com
mailto:mmbtwinkle@gmail.com
mailto:Erichey842@aol.com


 

Office of the City Clerk   Revised February, 2021 

Office of the City Clerk 

Advisory Boards Membership Roster 
 

RECREATION COMMISSION (§32.05)  

Meets Second Tuesday of the Month on a Bimonthly Basis 

 
This Commission consists of five members, was originally established by Ordinance 50 and amended by Ordinance 544, 636-79 and 733-88.  The term 

of office for all members is three years.  General provisions of Ordinance 731-88 and provisions for removal with or without cause contained in 

Ordinance 732-88 and Ordinance 788-92 which mandates removal for missing three meetings within a 12-month period also apply. (Effective 3/14/94 

this Board meets second Tuesday of the month).  Ordinance No. 851-99, adopted on March 22, 1999 eliminates membership restrictions for City 

agencies and committees.  “§32.05 (A)……… No commission member who shall have served three consecutive terms of office shall be eligible to 

serve an additional term of office for two years thereafter, unless the appointment for any additional term shall be confirmed by a majority of the 

council.” 

 

Member Appointed by Current Member 
Month/Year Term 

Expires 

Original 

Appointment Date 
Last Appointment Date 

Mayor E. Jorge Santin 10-14-2022 04-14-2008 10-14-2019 

Council – Group I Vacant Vacant vacant Vacant 

Council – Group II George “Yuri” Alves 04-30-2020 06-23-2017 06-23-2017 

Council – Group III Miguel Becerra 03-06-2021 09-09-2015 03-06-2018 

Council – Group IV Alexander Anthony 04-30-2019 08-12-2013 08-12-2013 

 

Mayor Group I   Group II   Group III     Group IV   

E. Jorge Santin VACANT  George “Yuri” Alves  Miguel Becerra    Alex Anthony 

1249 Heron Ave.     240 Reinette Dr.  620 Oriole Ave.    1131 Oriole Ave. 

305.608.4001 (C)     305.790.3270 (C)  786.663.1399 (C)    305.987.4278 (C) 

305.884.0282 (H)     Sales@ammetalmaq.com   Mabecerra@bellsouth.net     305.405.7500 (W) 
Jorge@appraisalfirstinc.com                Aanthony@foxmorgan.com  
 

 

 

 

 
O:\City Clerk Department\Committees & Advisory Boards\ROSTER\Advisory Board Rosters - March 2018.doc 

mailto:Sales@ammetalmaq.com
mailto:Mabecerra@bellsouth.net
mailto:Jorge@appraisalfirstinc.com
mailto:Aanthony@foxmorgan.com

	Agenda Summary - April 12, 2021
	Agenda Summary p. 2
	6A Minutes - March 22, 2021
	9A Reso - Police Radar
	9A Reso - Chemicals for Pool
	11A Reso - Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement
	12B Advisory Boards

	By: 
	Date: 
	OF: 
	By_2: 
	By_3: 
	Date_2: 
	By_4: 
	By_5: 
	Date_3: 
	CITY OF: 
	By_6: 
	By_7: 
	Title: 
	Title_2: 
	Date_4: 
	By_8: 
	By_9: 
	Date_5: 
	Director: 
	undefined: 
	SCHOOL DISTRICT: 
	By_10: 
	By_11: 
	Title_3: 
	Title_4: 
	Date_6: 
	By_12: 
	By_13: 
	Date_7: 
	OF_2: 
	OF_3: 
	By_14: 
	By_15: 
	Date_8: 
	By_16: 
	By_17: 
	Date_9: 
	Director_2: 
	undefined_2: 
	SPECIAL DISTRICT: 
	By_18: 
	By_19: 
	Title_5: 
	Title_6: 
	Date_10: 
	By_20: 
	By_21: 
	Date_11: 
	AUTHORITY STATE OF FLORIDA: 
	By_22: 
	By_23: 
	Date_12: 
	By_24: 
	By_25: 
	Date_13: 
	By_26: 
	TRIBE OF FLORIDA: 
	By_27: 
	Date_14: 
	By_28: 
	By_29: 
	Date_15: 
	COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 
	By_30: 
	By_31: 
	Title_7: 
	Title_8: 
	Date_16: 
	By_32: 
	Date_17: 
	Name of Government: 
	Mailing Address 1: 
	Mailing Address 2: 
	Name: 
	Title_9: 
	Address: 
	Day Phone: 
	Night Phone: 
	Facsimile: 
	Email: 
	Name_2: 
	Title_10: 
	Address_2: 
	Day Phone_2: 
	Night Phone_2: 
	Facsimile_2: 
	Email_2: 
	Name_3: 
	Title_11: 
	Address_3: 
	Day Phone_3: 
	Night Phone_3: 
	Facsimile_3: 
	Email_3: 
	RESOLUTION NO: 
	NOW THEREFORE be it resolved by: 
	that in order to maximize the: 
	ADOPTED BY 1: 
	ADOPTED BY 2: 
	I certify that the foregoing is an accurate copy of the Resolution adopted by: 
	on: 
	BY: 
	TITLE: 
	DATE: 


